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Disclaimer
This document contains statements about expected future events and financials of Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited, which
are forward-looking. By their nature, forward-looking statements require the Company to make assumptions and are subject
to inherent risks and uncertainties. There is significant risk that the assumptions, predictions and other forward-looking
statements may not prove to be accurate. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements
as a number of factors could cause assumptions, actual future results and events to differ materially from those expressed
in the forward-looking statements.

To change things for the better
we are here at your service

Our main purpose of existence is guided by our belief ‘The Power
of Service’. It starts with making a difference and setting new
standards to surpass them. Inspired and in sync with the idea of
Nation Building we have focused on ‘Thinking Big. Doing Better’
a natural philosophy embodied in each one of us associated with
Adani Group. Thus pushing boundaries and setting new standards
in serving energy needs have become our day to day practice that we
embrace and cherish.

Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited

AEML at a Glance
Pursuant to the share purchase
agreement entered, Reliance
Infrastructure’s integrated utility
business was demerged from it and
transferred to Reliance Electric
Generation and Supply Limited. On
August 29, 2018, Adani Transmission
Limited acquired 100% of the equity
share capital of Reliance Electric
Generation and Supply Limited, which
we renamed as Adani Electricity
Mumbai Limited on August 31, 2018.
This transaction marked our entry
into the integrated utility space.
Through this, we have provided the
service to 3.03 million households
(approximately 12 million consumers)
as on March 31, 2019.
Mumbai, the state capital of
Maharashtra is also India’s financial
capital and principle centre of
commerce, with a distinction as being
one of the largest and most densely
populated urban areas in the world.
We have been the primary suppliers
of electricity to Mumbai, serving
67% of its population and 85% of

its geographic area. Our integrated
electricity generation, transmission
and distribution utility allow us to
supply electricity to over 3.03 million
households in Mumbai with an
annual energy requirement of over
10,169 MUs. We service consumers
in suburban area in Mumbai and the
Mira-Bhayander Municipal Corporation
area in Thane District (adjoining
Mumbai), spanning over 400 sq. km.
Our integrated electricity supply
system includes 540 ckms of 220
KV transmission lines, consisting of
overhead and underground cable
systems, eight 220/33 KV extra
high voltage (‘EHV’) stations, with
installed transformation capacity of
3,125 MVA and embedded 500 MW
of power generation. Our ‘grid-toswitch’ integrated platform makes us
one of the largest private pure-play
integrated electric utilities in India.
We endeavor to provide the highest
quality supply in terms of sustainable,
reliable and affordable power along
with excellent consumer service.

ADTPS is a coal-fired 500 MW thermal power station, sited on a 848.9
hectare site at Dahanu in the State of Maharashtra, approximately 120
kilometers north of our licensed distribution area in Mumbai, between
the Savata and Dandi creeks, approximately four kilometers from Dahanu
railway station. ADTPS operates two 250 MW generating units. The first
unit of ADTPS started commercial operations in July 1995 and the second
unit started commercial operations in January 1996.
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Our Vision
To be the world-class leader in businesses that enrich
lives and contribute to nations in building infrastructure
through sustainable value creation

Awards and Accolades received in 2018-19
• AEML was awarded for the ‘Best Performing
Utility having integrated operations in Generation,
	Transmission and Distribution’ at the CBIP Awards 2019
• Award conferred to AEML by the Honourable Minister
of Power and New & Renewable Energy, Shri. R. K. Singh
during the celebration of CBIP Day 2019 on 04th January 2019

Our Core Values
Trust: We shall believe in our employees and other stakeholders
Courage: We shall embrace new ideas and businesses
Commitment: We shall stand by our promises and adhere
to high standards of business
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Distribution Presence
across Mumbai
North Division
M.B. Trade Center, 3rd Floor,
Mira Bhaindar Road,
Near Railway Crossing
Bhaindar(E). Thane.
Pawan
Putra
Mira
Dist S7
Vinayak Nagar 8

Mira R/S

Kandivali
Ind Estate
Kandivali
Malad
Jankalyan
Nagar

North Division
369 D, S.V. Road, Jn.of Shankar
lane, Kandivali (W),
Mumbai-400097

Borivali
R/S

Goregaon

Poisar

Central Division
Western Express Highway Dindoshi,
Malad (E), Mumbai-400097

Dindoshi 2
Dindoshi 1

Versova

South Central Division
F-4, MIDC, Next to ESIS Hospital,
Marol, Andheri (E),
Mumbai-400096

Andheri
(W)

MIDC
Marol
Airport

Bandra
Bandra (W) (E)

Ghatkopar

(W)
Andheri
Kurla
Ghatkopar
Kurla
(E)
Stn. (W)

East Division
Sakinaka Jn,
Andheri-Kurla Road, Near Park
Davis, Andheri (W),
Mumbai-400072

Chembur
Chembur
Govandi

South Division
Ground Floor, RNA Corporate
Park, Old Kalamandir, Near
Collector Office, Bandra (E),
Mumbai-400051

North Division
Central Division
East Division
South Division
South Central Division
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Chembur
Mahul

East Division
Tilak Nagar, Road No.3, Near
Sahakar Cinema, Chembur,
Mumbai-400089
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66,664

10,169 MUs

households added
in FY 2018-19

Energy output

~4,798 km.

High-tension cables

~19,445 km.

Low-tension cables

3.00 million 3.03 million
March, 2018

6,448

Substations

March, 2019

~12 million Consumers served
up 1%

Operational Highlights of 2018-19
~3 million

Households Serviced

~400 sq. kms

Distribution Network Span

55%

By electricity supplied

67%

Market Share (in terms of Consumers
Served) in Mumbai, which is among the
world’s top 10 cities by size of population

85%

City area

Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited

Group
Chairman’s
Message

As AEML, we are
delighted and
privileged to have
the opportunity to
serve over 3 million
households with
more than 12 million
consumers across
Mumbai and its
suburbs.

Dear Stakeholders,
Greetings! We live in interesting times. India
continues to be the world’s fastest growing
economy. We are expected to become the world’s
fifth largest nation by the end of this year. Our
country is expected to see an investment of
a trillion dollars in infrastructure, split evenly
between public and private sectors, and is on its
way to becoming a 5 trillion dollar economy over
the next five years.

India at an Inflection Point
In the recent elections, the mandate received by
the government is an indication that the citizens
of our country have voted for stability in support
of a vision that addresses large segments of the
society in a fashion and scale that will radically
change India’s development trajectory. In an
analysis published earlier this year, the World
Economic Forum predicted that India would have
lifted 2.5 crore more households out of poverty
6
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over the next decade, thereby reducing the share
to households below the poverty line to 5%.
For a size of our country, these are staggering
statistics and a harbinger of hope and optimism
for the entire nation. Undoubtedly, there will
be challenges and not all programmes may get
executed to perfection, but there cannot be
any denying of the fact that the ambitions of
our nation are taking shape in a fashion that is
transformative and exciting, and India is at an
inflection point.

The Transformation of the Adani Group
For the Adani Group, FY18-19 has also been a
year of inflection. Each one of our six publicly
traded Group companies delivered record financial
performance and made tangible progress in
further consolidating their positions as industry
leaders in every segment we operate in. Every one
of the Group companies are now growth platforms
that, while mutually independent, draw upon the
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management and leadership synergies that exist in
the Group.

time when India is on the journey to achieve 24x7
power for all.

AEML completes the Adani Energy Portfolio

AEML is committed towards further strengthening
the electricity value chain. This will include a focus
on operational excellence and safety as well as
sustainability and we look to reshape our power
generation mix in the years to come, by focusing on
a low-carbon growth strategy. Going forward, we
will focus on leveraging the abundant renewable
resources and cut down on expensive fossil fuels
requirement. Also, AEML has put in place a strategy
to blend its power purchase mix and has set a
target to source ~1/3rd of the electricity from wind
and solar power by 2023.

The Adani Group is defined by a philosophy of
nation building. Enabling the lives of the people
of our nation by providing them reliable power is a
critical pillar of this philosophy. The missing link in
our energy portfolio was the distribution business.
Following our successful formation of AEML
through ATL, we now are one of the world’s most
integrated energy businesses. This fundamentally
lays the foundation for our future growth in the
energy business that now extends into the homes
of the people of our nation.
We are delighted to welcome all the employees and
contract partners that are now a part of the Adani
family. Just like we expect that they will assimilate
the best of our culture, we will assimilate the best
of theirs. They have done a great job at ensuring
reliability of power supply to one of the greatest
cities in the world. My promise to them is that
together we will do even better. I wish to express
my sincere gratitude for all the support and trust
they have placed in our company. As we expand
our distribution business we will fully leverage their
expertise to learn from them and adopt the areas
of best practices developed over the many years of
operations.
As AEML, we are delighted and privileged to have
the opportunity to serve over 3 million households
with more than 12 million consumers across
Mumbai and its suburbs. We are committed to
provide reliable, uninterrupted and stable, 24×7
electricity at economical rates. This acquisition has
enabled us to operate in one of the India’s most
industrialised and electricity-hungry city ‘Mumbai’
where we serve ~85% of the city area, 67%
consumers and distribute 55% of the electricity
consumed.
The year 2018 -19 was a year of robust
achievement. We displayed strong operational
and financial performance despite some difficult
economic conditions. We are now placed on a solid
track for further growth.
For a country like India, power and electricity
are basic necessities and are critical to unlock
the true potential of India’s vibrant economy.
India’s per capita energy consumption is about
one-third of the global average. Hence, we see
power distribution as the next sunrise sector at a

Environment, social responsibility &
governance
Along with our focus on the financial and
operational performance, we are equally committed
to continue to strengthen our corporate governance
practices. In line with this, we have implemented a
strict policy for related party transactions. To ensure
transparency that all transactions are arm’s length
we will include assessments by internal business
teams, review through an external agency and a
due diligence by an Executive Committee consisting
of Board of Directors. These steps are in addition
to the existing regulatory requirements. Adani
Foundation continues to go about its business
of making a difference to the lives of the various
communities the Group touches. Our foundation
initiatives now reaches across 18 states and 2,250
villages and towns touching over 5,00,000 families.
Along with the growth of the business, it is this
goodness that makes our efforts meaningful.

Growth with Goodness
In closing, I thank all our stakeholders for their
continued support and conviction in our philosophy
of Growth with Goodness. We are committed to
continue our exciting journey of growth with the
support and guidance of our customers, employees,
shareholders, bankers, governments and the Board.
We shall continue to remain an active contributor to
nation-building, adding value to our product portfolio
and exploring new opportunities that contribute to
the growth of our business and the nation.
Regards,
Gautam Adani
Chairman
Adani Group
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Chairman’s
Message

The biggest focus
has been to deliver
sustainable
performance for
customer as also
reduce the cost of
input power as that
constitutes the
biggest element of
retail tariff.
Dear shareholders,
It is with great pleasure that I write this
communication about Adani Electricity’s
integration and emergence as a new brand in
retail electricity distribution. Within the very
first year of operations, after taking over this
business with effect from 29th August 2018,
it has steadied several of the operational
aspects that were showing downward slide. The
biggest focus has been to deliver sustainable
8
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performance for customer as also reduce the
cost of input power as that constitutes the
biggest element of retail tariff.
Your company realises that it has to leverage the
century old network & embedded experience
to emerge as a state-of-the-art, reliable,
competitive and endearing utility. At the same
time, it’s conscious of the fact that several of its
assets have outlived their useful life and need
methodical replacement over next few years,

Corporate Overview

before they start to cause disruptions. Thus, the
company has also focused on strengthening
its balance sheet and in organising appropriate
liquidity to support its ‘invest to grow’ strategy.

Economic environment
2018-19 witnessed several geo-political events,
some abetting uncertainty and a few bringing
in reassurance. India showed a GDP growth of
6.8% in 2018-19 which was lower as compared
to last year. This slowdown was caused by
liquidity crisis, rupee depreciation and volatile
crude oil prices. One would only hope that the
cyclical downturn wouldn’t stay for long and that
one would see higher consumption and growth
of Indian economy in the years ahead.

In Conclusion
Our colleagues and teams of associates are key
to shaping the AEML of tomorrow. It’s been our
endeavour to support our people in expressing
their full potential, and for them to realise the
best outcomes for stakeholders. Similarly, we are
focused on instilling a firm commitment towards
safety and well-being of communities, in all our
people.
During FY19, we continued our efforts to
enhance our culture of safety excellence –
directed by our strong leadership and driven by
the commitment of our own people to prioritise
safety.
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As a member of the Adani Group, we are
conscious of our commitment to “Growth with
Goodness.”
AEML and it’s promoter company are directing
its resources to work with communities in AEML
network area, to improve the quality of their
lives. We will empower grassroots communities
by implementing impactful development
initiatives across the four areas of education,
healthcare, sustainable livelihoods, and semiurban infrastructure segments.
The road ahead offers tremendous opportunities
for our business. We would continue to pursue
the same with the spirit of speed, quality, safety
and competitiveness. We will also remain true to
our commitment to create long term stakeholder
value, as we focus on growth, execution and
operational excellence.
We convey our best wishes to all our
stakeholders especially to our Customers,
Employees, Regulators and Government. We
would look forward to your continuing feedback
and encouragement.

Sincerely,
Anil Sardana
Chairman, AEML
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MANAGING DIRECTOR
& CEO’s MESSAGE

We continue to maintain the highest standards in operational
parameters to ensure continuous uninterrupted electricity
supply to our valued consumers.

10
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Dear shareholders,
With great pleasure I take this opportunity to
present to you, key highlights of Adani Electricity
Mumbai Limited’s first year of performance
under its new management. We have been
able to successfully leverage this organizations
rich operational history and add value through
investments for the future. We continue to
maintain the highest standards in operational
parameters to ensure continuous uninterrupted
electricity supply to our valued consumers.
Our balance sheet remains strong, with ample
liquidity to support our ‘Invest to Grow’ strategy.
With our Strategy focused on Reliable,
Sustainable and Affordable power supply, we
shall continue to strive to deliver exceptional
operational performance and added value for our
consumers, shareholders and associates.
Tariff trade wars between major Global
economies and uncertainty in the EU
surrounding Brexit caused a slowdown in
developed and emerging economies. India
showed a GDP growth of 6.8% in 2018-19 which
was lower as compared to the previous year. This
slowdown caused by a liquidity crisis and rupee
depreciation are signs of a cyclical slowdown.
We remain hopeful for Government reforms
to show positive results. We expect additional
interventions by the Government to positively

impact the Indian economic prospects including
corporate tax rate cut, recapitalisation of banks,
revision of GST rates and easing of credit.
Going forward, we are committed to procure
a significant majority of Mumbai’s power
requirement through renewable energy and
thereby optimize our operations costs in a
sustainable manner. With a view towards
consumer convenience we are aiming to adopt
a philosophy of “Service at your Doorstep”,
and continue to focus on offering best in class
services to our 3 million+ valued consumers
through various initiatives like a dedicated
IVR channel for reporting water logging and
streetlight issues, a dedicated loyalty program
“Electric Smiles” to reward our most valued loyal
customers, chatbot & voice bot integration on
website and mobile app and launching multiple
digital payment avenues.
I would like to extend our gratitude to our
consumers, employees, vendor partners, advisors,
management and everyone associated with AEML
in enabling us to deliver Positive results.

Yours sincerely,
Kandarp Patel
Managing Director & CEO, AEML

We continue to maintain the highest standards
in operational parameters to ensure continuous
uninterrupted electricity supply to our valued consumers.
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Message from CFO
As I reflect on the progress of first
year performance post acquisition,
firstly, I would like to say thanks to
each one of you for your continued
support. I am proud of what we
have accomplished together, and I
am even more optimistic about the
opportunities ahead. Your Company
had shown all round performance
and strengthened its fundamentals
further, below are the highlights:

Financial highlights of 2018-19
• The Company posted a total income
of ` 7643.21 Crores
• The Company posted an EBITDA of 		
` 1663.67 Crores
• The Company posted a PAT of
` 61.48 Crores
• The Company posted an EBITDA 		
margin of 21.80%
• The Company posted a PAT margin 		
of 0.80%
• The Company posted a Debt to 		
Ebitda ratio of 5.44
At AEML, we are though now at
the initial stage, are planning for
sustainability, reliability and supplying
power at affordable rate to the
consumers of Mumbai suburb.
Group philosophy of Sustainability
has been replicated in this company
and we are proposing to tie up with
Hybrid renewable power supply to the
consumers of Mumbai to the extent
of 30% of total supply

12
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Our main objective of
achieving sustainable
growth while minimising our
ecological footprint within
our sphere of business is of
utmost importance.

Corporate Overview

Additionally, we are exploring different growth
opportunities through the inorganic route.
Focus of the management is on Asset Hardening
and we propose to do so by effective Capital
management programme. This will not only
protect my RAB for EBIDTA generation but will
also enhance the reliability factors of AEML
Going forward, we have plans to revisit and
renew our business model by generating a major
part of the electricity through renewable energy.
This will enable us to improve our margins and
optimise the operational cost in a sustainable
way. Along with this, we have been constantly
working towards offering best in class service to
our 3 million+ consumers. We have set different
payment platforms to improve our quality of
service. Round the clock, we serve Mumbai
across its length and breadth through excellent
customer care service.
As an organisation our activities on local
populations and ecology is of utmost priority.
Our main objective of achieving sustainable
growth while minimising our ecological footprint
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within our sphere of business is of paramount
importance. In order to encourage the same
we provide various payment options to our
consumers like offline bill payment centers,
advance payment options on our mobile
application, e-wallet and UPI internet pay
options made live through adanielectricity.
com, the first of its kind in the utility space.
Last but not the least; our people are our most
valuable asset and the foundation of all our
goals. Our competitiveness and sustainable
growth depends on Talent, Tools, Technology
and Tenacity. I couldn’t have asked for a better
foundation and I look forward to creating many
more milestones for our Nation.

Best wishes,
Rakesh Tiwary
Chief Financial Officer, AEML

13

Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited

Board of Directors

Mr Anil Sardana
Chairman Non-Executive Director
Anil Sardana is the Chairman of our Company.
He holds a degree in electrical engineering
from the University of Delhi, from which he
graduated with honors. Prior to joining our
Company, he was the Managing Director
andChief Executive Officer of the Tata Power
group in Mumbai. He has approximately

40 years of experience in the power and
infrastructure sector and is experienced in
the areas of power generation, power systems
design, power distribution, telecoms and
project management.

Mr Kandarp Patel
Managing Director and CEO
Kandarp Patel is the Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer of our Company.
He holds a bachelor’s degree in electrical
engineering from Birla Viswakarma
Mahavidhyalaya Engineering College and a post
graduate diploma in business management
in Finance from G.H. Patel PG Institute of
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Business Management. He has more than
17 years of experience in the areas of power
trading, fuel management, legal and regulatory
and commercial aspects of the power business.
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Mr SAGAR ADANI
Non-Executive Director
Sagar Adani is a Non-Executive Director of our
Company. He joined the Adani Group in 2015
after graduating in economics from Brown
University, United States. Having started off his

career in projects, he is credited with building
the solar and wind portfolio of Adani Green
Energy.

Mr Kalaikuruchi Jairaj
Independent Director
K. Jairaj is an Independent Director of our
Company. He is a member of the Indian
Administrative Service, class of 1976, and
has held appointments in the infrastructure,
energy, transport and urban development
sectors, including acting as the Additional
Chief Secretary, Energy Department and
Chairman of Bangalore Electricity Supply
Company Limited, the Managing Director
of Bangalore International Airport Limited,
the Managing Director of Karnataka Power
Corporation Limited, the Managing Director of
Karnataka State Road Transport Corporation,
the Commissioner of Bangalore City Corporation
for two terms, the Commissioner for
Commercial Taxes and the Principal Secretary
to the Chief Minister, Karnataka. With N.R.
Narayanamurthy, Chairman Emeritus of Infosys,
K. Jairaj established Bangalore International
Airport Limited, India’s first greenfield airport
on a public-private partnership basis with
Siemens. K. Jairaj served with the World Bank
in Washington D.C. as a senior public sector

management specialist for Africa between 2004
to 2006. K. Jairaj’s academic background is
in economics, public policy and management.
He has a bachelor’s degree in arts (honours)
from Bangalore University, a master’s degree in
economics from the Delhi School of Economics,
a master’s degree in public administration
(“MPA”) from the Woodrow Wilson School of
Public and International Affairs at Princeton
University and an MPA from the Kennedy School
of Government at Harvard University, where he
was the Edward Mason fellow. K. Jairaj is active
in the national management movement and has
served as president of the All India Management
Association, has been the president of the
Bangalore management association and a
member of the board of governors for the Indian
Institute of Management in Kashipur. He was
also on the board of governors of the Indian
Institute of Management in Bangalore from
2000 to 2004. He is associated with several
educational and not-for-profit institutions.
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CORPORATE INFORMTION
Our Directors

REGISTERED OFFICE

Mr Anil Sardana
Chairman Non-Executive Director

“Adani House” 56 Shrimali Society,
Nr. Mithakhali Six Roads, Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad-380009,

Mr Kandarp Patel

Gujarat (INDIA)

Managing Director and CEO

CIN No : U74999GJ2008PLC107256

Mr Sagar Adani

Our Bankers

Non-Executive Director
Mr Kalaikuruchi Jairaj
Independent Director

State Bank of India
Bank of Baroda
Bank of India

Company Secretary

HDFC Bank Limited

Mr Abhijit Banerjee

ICICI Bank Limited
Yes Bank Limited

AUDITORS
M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Mumbai
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Directors’ Report
To
The Members,
Your Directors present the 11th Annual Report together with audited financial statement of the Company for the year
ended 31 March, 2019.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Summary of the financial results is as under:

Particulars
Total Income
Total Expenditure
Profit/(Loss) Before Rate Regulated Activities, Exceptional Items and Tax
Add/(Less): Regulatory Income/(Expenses) (Net)
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Tax Expenses
Net Profit/(Loss)
Other Comprehensive Income / (Expenses)
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)

2018-19
7,643.21
7,631.66
1 1.55
157.59
169.14
107.66
61.48
0.03

(` in Crores)
2017-18
47.49
(47.49)
(47.49)
(47.49)
-

61.51

(47.49)

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of
the financial year and date of this report.
PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY
Business Operations
The Company is in the business of generation,
transmission and distribution of electricity.
GENERATION DIVISION
Adani Dahanu Thermal Power Station (DTPS)
DTPS operates the 2 x 250 MW power plant and continues
to maintain its numerous uno operational position
among the power stations in the country. In 2018-19,
the Plant Load Factor was 82.58% which was mainly on
account of low demand in the western grid and backing
down of generation as per State Load Dispatch Centre
(SLDC) instructions. The station generated 3,617 million
units (MUs) along with plant availability of 94.89%.
TRANSMISSION DIVISION
The Company is intra-state transmission licensee in
operation since 1995 after commissioning 220kV
transmission OH lines between DTPS to Mumbai.
The Company’s transmission business operates eight
220kV Extra High Voltage (EHV) Substations with an
aggregate transformation capacity of 3,125 MVA and
approximately 541 ckt.kms of 220kV lines. Five out
of these eight EHV Substations are new technology
vertically designed, multi-storied and compact Gas
Insulated Switchgear (GIS) based EHV Substations. The
Company’s transmission network is connected with

the state grid at ten points, further strengthening the
Mumbai power system. The Company always strives to
adopt best practices, along with efforts to keep the high
standards of maintaining network system availability.
For fiscal year ended 31 March, 2019, the Company
registered 99.75% system availability, which is above
the norms set by the regulator, thereby we are operating
consistently in the incentive zone.
The Company is currently executing 220kV Cable
connectivity scheme between AEML Aarey & MSETCL
Borivali, 220 kV GIS bays extension scheme at Versova
EHV Substation and 33 kV AIS to GIS Conversion
schemes at Aarey Versova & Ghodbunder EHV Station
to strengthen transmission network in the Mumbai area.
At AEML-T, new technologies are continuously explored
and deployed for improvement of the operation and
maintenance practices. New technology schemes
adopted recently are Travelling Wave Fault locator,
Optical CT (to enable auto re-closure of hybrid
transmission lines), Augmented reality technology for
outage management in 220kV EHV Station & 220kV
Cable System. Online DC earth fault monitoring and
identification system, use of monopoles in place of
conventional transmission towers.
DISTRIBUTION DIVISION
Distribution operations of the Company continue to
achieve the distinction of consistently operating its
distribution network at 99.99 per cent reliability.
17
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Directors’ Report (Contd.)
Sales and Revenue
The Company sold 8,376 million units of electricity to
its own consumers in 2018-19. Also, the Tata Power
Company Limited (TPC) consumers connected to the
network of the Company consumed 1,572 million units
of electricity in 2018-19. Open access consumers
connected to the network of the Company consumed
221 million units of electricity in 2018-19. The sales
revenue of the Company from Distribution Operation for
2018-19 was ` 7,030.58 crs including wheeling revenue
of ` 1,562 crs based on the tariff determined by the
Hon’ble Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission
(MERC) for 2018-19 vide Multi Year Tariff (MYT) Order
and Mid Term Review Order dated 21 October, 2016 and
12 September, 2018 respectively.
System Demand
The coincident peak demand of distribution system in
2018-19 was 1,905 MW as against 1,884 MW in 2017-18.
Distribution Loss and Collection Efficiency
The distribution loss for the Company’s distribution
network for 2018-19 was 7.85%. The collection efficiency
for 2018-19 was 100.53%
Customers
The number of customers using the Company’s network
as at 31 March, 2019 was 30.32 Lacs. The Company has
added 66,664 consumers to its network in 2018-19.
Network Augmentation
In order to meet the rising demand for power, network
augmentation is undertaken on a continuous basis.
During the financial year 2018-19, High Tension (HT)
cable network increased from 4,644 kms to 4,798 kms.
The power transformers’ installed capacity increased
to 3,715 MVA and distribution transformers’ installed
capacity increased to 4,978 MVA. The Company added
58 new sub-stations and had 6,448 sub-stations as of
31 March, 2019.
Billing and Payment
During the year Company modified the electricity bill
format and made it easy to understand. Company also
issued informative leaflets on how to read the bills, how
the meter reading and billing happens. The customers
have access to an array of bill payment options such
as Collection Centres, Collecting Bank, Drop Box, Easy
Bill Outlets, Payment using Itz Cash Card, National
Automated Clearing House, Voluntary Deposit Scheme
(VDS), Rupay Cards and Online Payment Options using
Credit Card/ Debit Card / Net Banking, UPI, mVisa,
Masterpass, RTGS/NEFT, IMPS. Additionally, various
18

Annual Report 2018-19

mobile wallet payment options like Paytm, FreeCharge,
Citrus Pay, mRupee, Airtel Money, cashCard, HDFC
PayZapp, JioMoney, PayCash, Oxygen, Vodafone mPesa,
ICICI Pockets are also being offered to the customers.
Apart from the above, the Company also provides
various value-added services based on web, mobile and
social media. The Company also provides customer care
and call centre facilities. The customers can access
Company’s 24 hours Toll free helpline by calling 19122.
Regulatory Initiatives, Developments and Issues
Hon’ble MERC has issued Mid-Term Review order on
12 September, 2018 for Generation, Transmission and
Distribution business approving the truing up of 2016-17
and 2017-18 and revised Annual Revenue Requirement
(ARR) for 2018-19 and 2019-20. Hon’ble MERC in its
order dated 2 January, 2019 has accorded in-principle
approval allowing assignment by way of security of the
Distribution Licence No. 1 of 2011 and Transmission
Licence No. 1 of 2011 in favour of SBICAP Trustee
Company Limited, on behalf of the Lenders. Appeal
has been filed before Appellate Tribunal for Electricity
against order of Hon’ble MERC in respect of approval of
network rollout plan of Tata Power Company Limited.
The said appeal is presently pending. Hon’ble MERC has
issued Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Deviation Settlement Mechanism and Related Matters)
Regulations 2019 applicable from 1 April, 2020. This
is major shift from the existing mechanism of energy
settlement within the state.
Renewable Purchase Obligations (RPO)
The Company has purchased 214 MUs of Non-Solar and
66 MUs of Solar energy to meet its Renewable Purchase
Obligation for 2018-19. Shortfall in meeting RPO target
as specified by the Hon’ble MERC will be met either
through purchase of Renewable Energy Certificate or
additional Renewable Energy in future as per directions/
orders of Hon’ble MERC.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
During the year under review, your Company earned
an income of ` 7643.21 crs and earned a profit after
tax of Rs 61.48 crs for the year under review. The
audited financial statements of your Company as on 31
March, 2019, prepared in accordance with the relevant
applicable IND AS and provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, forms part of this Annual Report.
SHIFTING OF REGISTERED OFFICE
The registered office of the Company was shifted from
the state of Maharashtra to the State of Gujarat with
effect from 27th March 2019.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The extract of the Annual Return as provided under
sub section 3 of Section 92 of the Companies Act 2013
(‘Act’) is attached in Annexure A.

Shri Rakesh Tiwary was appointed as Chief Financial
Officer of the Company with effect from 1 November,
2018.

DIVIDEND

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your Directors have not recommended any dividend on
equity shares for the year under review.

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of
Directors to the best of their knowledge and ability
state the following:

RESERVES
The Company has not transferred any amount to the
General Reserves during the year under review.

a.

that in the preparation of the annual accounts,
for the year ended March, 31, 2019, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

b.

that the Directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2019
and of the profit of the Company for that period;

c.

that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

d.

that the Directors had prepared the annual
accounts on a going concern basis;

e.

that the Directors had devised proper systems
to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating efficiently.

SUBSIDIARY STATUS
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Adani
Transmission Limited.
DIRECTORS
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act,
Shri K Jairaj was appointed as Independent Director
at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on 27 September, 2018. The terms and conditions
of appointment of Independent Director are as per
Schedule IV of the Act. The Company has received a
confirmation from Shri K Jairaj that he meets with the
criteria of independence as prescribed under subsection
(6) of Section 149 of the Act and there has been no
change in the circumstances which may affect Shri
Jairaj’s status as Independent Director during the year.
Smt Birva Patel (DIN: 07203299) was appointed
as an Additional Director under the category ‘NonExecutive’ of the Company in terms of the provisions of
Section 161(1) the Act with effect from 21 May 2019.
In accordance with the provisions of the Act Smt Birva
Patel (DIN: 07203299) holds office up to the date of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to Section
160 of the Act, the Company has received a notice in
writing from a member proposing the candidature of Smt
Birva Patel (DIN: 07203299) for the office of Director at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the members. It
is therefore proposed to recommend the appointment
of Smt Birva Patel (DIN: 07203299) as a Director of
the Company liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Act and Articles
of Association of the Company, Shri Sagar Adani (DIN
07626229), Director is liable to retire by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.
The Board recommends the re-appointment of Shri
Sagar Adani (DIN 07626229) for your approval.

BOARD MEETINGS
The Board of Directors met 9 times during the financial
year 2018-19 on the following dates:
20 April, 2018, 29 June, 2018, 28 July, 2018, 30 July,
2018, 20 August, 2018, 29 August, 2018, 12 September,
2018, 01 November, 2018 and 12 February, 2019.
AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT
M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) Statutory
Auditors of the Company holds the office until the
conclusion of 15th Annual General Meeting of the
Company.
The observations and comments given by the Auditors
in their report together with notes to Accounts are self
explanatory and hence do not call for any further
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comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
The Auditors have not reported any instance of fraud
on or by the Company under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013.
The Auditors Report is enclosed with the financial
statements in this Annual Report.
COST AUDITORS
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors
have appointed M/s Joshi Apte & Associates, Cost
Accountants (Firm Registration Number 00240), as
the Cost Auditors of the Company for conducting the
cost audit of Power Generation, Transmission and
Distribution Divisions of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 March, 2019, and their remuneration is
ratified by the members at the Extra-ordinary General
Meeting held on 11 March, 2019.
However, as the turnover the Company for the
immediately preceding year is not exceeding the
threshold specified, the Company is exempt under
Rule 3 of Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014 from the requirement of maintenance of the cost
records for the financial year under review.
SECRETARIAL AUDIT
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company
appointed M/s. Ashita Kaul & Associates, Company
Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit
of the Company. There is no qualification, reservation
or adverse remark made by the Secretarial Auditor in
the Secretarial Audit Report. The Audit Report of the
Secretarial Auditor is attached hereto as Annexure B.
FIXED DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company has not
accepted deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
PARTICULARS
INVESTMENTS

OF

LOANS,

GUARANTEES

AND

The provisions of Section 186 of the Act, with respect
to loan, guarantee or security are not applicable to
the Company as Company is engaged in providing
infrastructural facilities which is exempted under
Section 186 of the Act. The details of Investments
made by the Company during the year under review are
provided in the financial statements.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All the related party transaction entered into during the
financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were
in the ordinary course of business. The disclosure of
related party transactions as required under Section
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC 2 is
attached hereto as Annexure C.
INSURANCE
The Company has taken appropriate insurance for all
assets against foreseeable perils.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Statement pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended
31 March, 2019 is annexed to this Report as Annexure D.
CONSERVATION
OF
ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO
The information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time is annexed to
this Report as Annexure E.
VIGIL MECHANISM
In accordance with Section 177 of the Act the Company
has formulated a Vigil Mechanism to address the
genuine concern, if any of the directors and employees.
BOARD EVALUATION
The Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating
its performance and as well as that of its Committees
and individual Directors, including the Chairman of
the Board. The exercise was carried out through an
evaluation process covering various aspects of the
Board functioning such as composition of the Board and
Committees, experience and competencies, performance
of specific duties and obligations, contribution at
the meetings and otherwise, independent judgment,
governance issues etc.
PREVENTION
WORKPLACE

OF

SEXUAL

HARASSMENT

AT

As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder,
your Company has constituted Internal Complaints

Corporate Overview

Statutory Reports

Financial Statements

Directors’ Report (Contd.)
Committee (ICC) which is responsible for redressal of
complaints related to sexual harassment. During the
year under review, there were no complaints pertaining
to sexual harassment.

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee and has framed a CSR
Policy. The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed
to this Report as Annexure-F. The CSR Policy is available
on the website.
CONTROLS

The Company has complied with the applicable
Secretarial Standards.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

INTERNAL FINANCIAL
ADEQUACY

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

AND

THEIR

The Company has in place adequate internal financial
controls. During the year under review, such controls
were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in
the design or operation were observed.

Your Directors are highly appreciative and grateful for
all the guidance, support and assistance received from
the Government, Financial Institutions and Banks. Your
Directors thank esteemed customers, suppliers and
business associates for their faith, trust and confidence
reposed in the Company.
Your Directors also wish to place on record their sincere
appreciation for the dedicated efforts and consistent
contribution made by the employees at all levels, to
ensure that the Company continues to grow and excel.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

SD/-

The Company has formulated and implemented Risk
Management Policy including identification therein of
the elements of risks, which in the opinion of the Board
may threaten the existence of the Company.
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
No orders have been passed by the regulators or courts
or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the
Company’s operations during the year under review.

Anil Sardana
Chairman
(DIN: 00006867)
Place : Mumbai
Dated : 21 May, 2019
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FORM NO. MGT.9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31 March, 2019
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I.

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
i)
ii)
iii)

CIN: Registration Date
Name of the Company

:
:

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company

:

v)

:

Address of the registered office and
contact details:
vi) Whether listed company Yes / No
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any:

II.

U74999GJ2008PLC107256
18/09/2008
Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited (formerly Reliance Electric
Generation And Supply Limited)
Company Limited by Shares, Indian Non- Government
Company
Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society Nr. Mithakhali Six Roads,
Navrangpura Ahmedabad Ahmedabad GJ 380009 IN, Tel:
No
Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Karvy Selenium, Tower – B, Plot No. 31 & 32 Survey No.
116/22, 115/24, 115/25, Financial District, Nanakramguda
Hyderabad 500 032, Tel. : +91 40 6716 1500
Fax : +91 40 6716 1791 Toll Free No.: 1800 4250 999

:

:
:

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:Sl. Name and Description of main
No. products/ services
1

III.

NIC Code of the Product/service

% to total turnover of the company

351

98.04

Power Business

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sl. NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE
No. COMPANY
1

Adani Transmission Limited

CIN/GLN

L40300GJ2013PLC07780

Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate
Holding

% of shares
held

Applicable
Section

100

2(46)

Adani House, Nr. Mithakhali Six
Roads, Navrangpura Ahmedabad
Ahmedabad GJ 380009 IN
IV.

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)

i)

Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year (01.04.2018)
Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

No. of Shares held at the end of the year (31-03-2019)
Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

% Change
during the
year

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual /HUF

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

b) Central Govt.

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00
0.00

c) State Govt.(s)
d)Bodies Corporate
e) Banks / FI
f) Any Other….
Sub-Total (A)(1):
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0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

50,000

0

50,000

100.00

3,400,050,000

0

3,400,050,000

100.00

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0

0

0.00

0.00

0 3,400,050,000

100.00

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0

50,000

0

50,000

100.00

3,400,050,000
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Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year (01.04.2018)
Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

No. of Shares held at the end of the year (31-03-2019)
Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

% Change
during the
year

(2) Foreign
a)NRIs - Individuals

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

b)Other - Individuals

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

c) Bodies Corporate

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00
0.00

d) Banks / FI

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

e) Any Other….

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

Sub-Total (A)(2):

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

50,000

0

50,000

100.00

3,400,050,000

0

3,400,050,000

100.00

0.00

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total Shareholding
of Promoters (A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2)
B. Public
Shareholding
(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds /
UTI
b) Banks / FI

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

c) Central Govt.

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.00

d) State Govt.(s)

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

e) Venture Capital

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Funds
f) Insurance
Companies
g) FIIs

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

h) Foreign Venture

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

Capital Funds
i) Others (specify)

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

Sub-Total (B)(1):

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

(2) Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corporate
i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i. Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share
capital up to ₹1 Lakh.
ii. Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share
capital in excess of
₹1 Lakh.
c)Others (specify)
i) Shares held by
Pakistani citizens
vested with the
Custodian of Enemy
property
ii) Other Foreign
Nationals
iii) Foreign Bodies
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Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year (01.04.2018)
Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

No. of Shares held at the end of the year (31-03-2019)
Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

% Change
during the
year

iv) NRI / OCBs

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

v) Clearing Members

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

/ Clearing House
vi) Trusts

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

vii) Limited Liability

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

Sub-Total (B)(2):

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total Public

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

50,000

0

50,000

100.00

3,400,050,000

0 3,400,050,000

100.00

0.00

partnership
viii) Foreign Portfolio
investor (corporate)
ix) Qualified Foreign
Investor

Shareholding (B)=(B)
(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRS
Grand Total (A+B+C)

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Shareholders Name

Reliance Infrastructure
Limited

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
(01.04.2018)
Demat Physical
Total
50,000
0 50,000

Adani Transmission
Limited
Total

50,000

0

50,000

%

Shareholding at the end of the year (31-032019)
Demat
0

Physical
0

3,400,050,000
100 3,400,050,000

100

%

% change in
shareholding
during the
year

Total
0

0

-100

0

3,400,050,000

100

100

0

3,400,050,000

100

0

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding:
Sr.
No.

At the beginning of the year Reliance
Infrastructure Limited
Date wise increase/ decrease in promoters
shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc)
Allotment of 340,00,00,000 shares to
Reliance Infrastructure Limited on 20 August,
2018
Transfer of shares to Adani Transmission
Limited on 29 August, 2018
At the end of the year
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Shareholding at the beginning
of the year
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company
50,000
100
-

-

Cumulative shareholding
during the year
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company
0
0

- 3,400,050,000

100

3,400,050,000

100

- 3,400,050,000

100
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)
Sr.
No.

At the beginning of the year
Date wise increase/ decrease in promoters
shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc)
At the end of the year (or on the date of
separation, if separated during the year)

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company
NIL
NIL
-

NIL

NIL

Cumulative shareholding
during the year
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company
NIL
NIL
-

NIL

NIL

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: Directors
Shareholding at the beginning
of the year (01.04.2018)
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company
Mr Anil Sardana
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase/Decrease in shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year (01.04.2018)
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company
Mr Kandarp Patel
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase/Decrease in shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease(e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year (31-03-2019)
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year (01.04.2018)
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company
Mr Sagar Adani
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase/Decrease in shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease(e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year (31-03-2019)
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year (31-03-2019)
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
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Mr K Jairaj
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase/Decrease in shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease(e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year (01.04.2018)
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year (31-03-2019)
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr Rakesh Tiwary
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase/Decrease in shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease(e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year

Mr Abhijit Banerjee
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase/Decrease in shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease(e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year
V.

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year (01.04.2018)
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year (31-03-2019)
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year (01.04.2018)
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year (31-03-2019)
No of shares
% of total
shares of the
Company

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
• Addition
• Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
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Unsecured
Loans

(` In crs)
Total
Indebtedness

Deposits

1,500
11.10
1,511.10

34.66
34.66

-

1,534.66
11.10
1,545.75

10,405.11
2,353.26
8,051.85

929.84
504.25
425.59

-

11,334.95
2857.51
8,477.44

9,551.85
22.65
9,574.50

460.25
20.45
480.70

-

10,012.10
43.10
10,055.20
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A.

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/ or Manager

Sl.
no.

Particulars of Remuneration

1.

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Incometax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
-as % of profit
-others, specify...
Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

(` In crs)
Total Amount

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager
Mr Kandarp Patel (MD) *

2.
3.
4.

5.

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

8.61

* Mr Kandarp Patel, Managing Director & CEO is not drawing any remuneration from the Company
B.

Remuneration to other directors:

Sl.
no.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

1.

Independent Directors
• Fee for attending board committee meetings
• Commission
• Others, please specify
Total (1)
Other Non-Executive Directors
• Fee for attending board committee meetings
• Commission
• Others, please specify
Total (2)
Total (B) = (1 + 2)
Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

(` In crs)
Total Amount

Mr K Jairaj

2.

C.

1,25,000

1,25,000

1,25,000
NIL
NIL

NIL
1,25,000
1,25,000
8.61 crs

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD:
(` In crs)

Sl.
no.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel
Shri Kandarp
Mr Rakesh
Patel
Tiwary
(Chief Executive (Chief Financial
Officer)
Officer)

1.

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Incometax Act, 1961

Mr Abhijit
Banerjee
(Company
Secretary)

Total

-

0.45

0.34

0.79

-

-

-

-
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(` In crs)
Sl.
no.

2.
3.
4.

5.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
-as % of profit
-others, specify...
Others, please specify
Ceiling as per the Act

Shri Kandarp
Mr Rakesh
Patel
Tiwary
(Chief Executive (Chief Financial
Officer)
Officer)
-

Mr Abhijit
Banerjee
(Company
Secretary)
-

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.45

0.34

0.79

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type

Section
of the
Companies
Act

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
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Brief
Details of Penalty/
Description
Punishment/
Compounding fees
imposed

Authority
[RD/NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal
made, if
any (give
Details)

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
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Annexure B
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended 31 March, 2019
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 09 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To

5.

The Members,
Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited

(a)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society Nr. Mithakhali
Six Roads, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009.

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992;

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Adani
Electricity Mumbai Limited (hereinafter called “the
company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

Based on our verification of Adani Electricity Mumbai
Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company
and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that
in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2019
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board–processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31
March,2019 according to the provisions of:1.

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder;

2.

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder- Not
Applicable.;

3.

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4.

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings:
Not Applicable;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)- Not Applicable;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;
(f)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with the client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulation, 2009;
and
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
6.

Other laws specifically applicable to the company:-	The Electricity Act, 2003 and the rules &
regulations made thereunder;
The adequate systems and processes are in place to
monitor and ensure compliance with general laws
like labour laws, environmental laws etc. to the
extent of their applicability to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
During the period under review the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
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We further report that, the Board of Directors of the
Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Non-Executive Directors, Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provision of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule
the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, there
are instances of holding meetings at shorter notice(s)
with the consent of the Board of Directors, and system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that, during the audit period following
resolutions have been passed by the company fori)	Issue of Securities on right basis to its existing
shareholder pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) of the
Act,
ii) 	Change of name of the Company pursuant to
Section 13(2) of the Act,
iii) 	Creation of charge and increase in borrowing limits
of the Company pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) and
180(1)(c) of the Act,
iv) 	Amendment and adoption of new set of Articles of
Association of the Company pursuant to Section 14
of the Act,

All decisions at Board Meetings are carried out
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings
of Board of Directors.

v) 	Shifting of registered office of the Company from
one state to another state pursuant to Section 12
of the Act;

We further report that, there are adequate systems and
processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliances with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

For Ashita Kaul & Associates
Company Secretaries
(Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 21 May, 2019

SD/Proprietor
FCS 6988/ CP 6529
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Form No. AOC.2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions
under third proviso (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

financial closure

1.	Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions
not at arm’s length basis

3.

Fee details:

Not Applicable

Term Loan: 0.2% of the facility amount

(a)	Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Working Capital Loan: 0.1% of the Facility amount

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

Capex Loan: 0.2% of the Facility amount
4. 	The contract is capped of ` 2 crs (min) and ` 7 crs
(Max) (excluding taxes)

(c)	Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions
(d)	Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any
(e)	Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions
(f)

date(s) of approval by the Board:

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:
(h)	Date on which the ordinary resolution was passed
in general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188
2.	Details of material contracts or arrangement or
transactions at arm’s length basis
(a)	Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
	
Adani Finserve Private Limited (AFPL), Related Party
under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:
Availing of Financial Advisory Services
(c)	Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions
Upto 31 December, 2018
(d)	Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any
1.	Availing financial advisory services in relation
to Company’s refinancing of term loan facilities
and raising of working capital and capital
expenditure loan facilities, more particularly
detailed in the scope of services stated in the
engagement letter
2. 	Engagement fee to be paid in cash after the

(e)	Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions
	
Since the Company did not have the internal expertise
to negotiate with the bankers, review documentation,
build future projections, etc and would need to depend
on external help for the same, the services were availed
of from AFPL, a group Company, which had the relevant
expertise/ capability to undertake the work.
(f)

Date(s) of approval by the Board:
12 September, 2018

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:
NIL
Details of material contracts
transactions at arm’s length basis

or

arrangement

or

(a)	Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
Adani Transmission Limited, Holding Company,
Related Party under Section 2(76) of the Companies
Act, 2013
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:
Availing of various common corporate services more
particularly provided in Schedule I of the Support
Services Agreement
(c)	Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions
01 September, 2018 to 31 March, 2019
(d)	Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any
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Availing of various common corporate services more
particularly provided in Schedule I of the Support
Services Agreement for a fee of ` 40 crs (max)
(e)	Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions
Since the Company did not have requisite professional
skills, adequate personnel and infrastructure, it was
considered appropriate to avail of various common
corporate services.
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(f)

date(s) of approval by the Board:
12 September, 2018

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:
NIL
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai
Date: 21 May, 2019

SD/Anil Sardana
Chairman
(DIN: 00006867)

1,01,94,891.32 Permanent

1,19,19,494.63 Permanent

49,61,406.06

1,60,15,874.04 Permanent

COO Transmission

COO Generation

Head HR

CFO

Vice President

Senior
Executive Vice
President

Arvindkumar
Sharma

Rajendra Nandi

Manoj Kumar
Sharma

Rakesh Tiwary

Nitin Kumar
Rohilla

Ajoy Rajani

2

3

4

5

6

7

46,65,843.38

60,40,910.60

Permanent

Permanent

Permanent

1,43,71,987.40 Permanent

COO Distribution

01/12/2004

15/10/2018

51 Years

51 Years

48 Years

54 Years

59 Years

58 Years

48 Years

Age

Wireless
Nova

Freelancer
with Pidilite

Mundra
Solar Pvt Ltd

Adani Infra
India Ltd

Gammon
Turnkeys Ltd.

Power Grid
Corporation
of India Ltd

Hindustan
Lever Ltd.

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Last
Percentage
Employment
of equity
held
shares held in
the Company

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Whether relative
of any director or
manager, and if
so, name of such
director or manager

Statutory Reports

BTech
Chemical
Engg27 Years

BE-Electrical
Engg, MBAOthers
29 Years

01/11/2018

B.Com.,CA,ICWA,CS,MBA
23 Years

16/03/1985

BE-Electrical
Engg
38 Years
01/09/2018

30/05/2008

BE-Electrical
Engg
35 Years

BA,PGDIRPM
29 Years

15/04/1996

BE-Others
25 Years

Nature of Qualification &
Date of
employment,
Experience Commencement
whether
of Employment
contractual
or otherwise

Kapil Sharma

Remuneration
Received

1

Designation

Name of the
Employee

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER RULE 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

ADANI ELECTRICITY MUMBAI LIMITED

Sr.
No

Annexure D
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34

Vice President

Senior Vice
President

Name of the
Employee

Kerman Savak
Karkaria

Satya Narayan
Moondra

Vinayak G Dhonde Vice President

Sr.
No

8

9

10

Designation

Annexure D (Contd.)
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80,36,827.80

96,35,481.66

91,40,673.38

Remuneration
Received

Permanent

Permanent

Permanent

BA
Economics,MLSPersonnel
Management27 Years

BScMathematics,FCACA,AICWACOSTING29 Years

BE-Industrial
Engg-,MBAFinance
24 Years

26/07/2005

04/04/2012

16/04/2004

Nature of Qualification &
Date of
employment,
Experience Commencement
whether
of Employment
contractual
or otherwise

51 Years

52 Years

47 Years

Age

Larsen &
Toubro
Limited

Home
Solution
Retail India
Ltd

TATA Power

NIL

NIL

NIL

Last
Percentage
Employment
of equity
held
shares held in
the Company

NA

NA

NA

Whether relative
of any director or
manager, and if
so, name of such
director or manager
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Disclosure under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy and
Technology Absorption

		

iii.	Refurbishment of Boiler - Eco & Re-heater
coils, Headers, Hanger tubes

		

iv.	Refurbishment of Turbine Valves.

A.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

		

v.

Refurbishment of Milling system

Dahanu Power Station

		

vi.

Replacement of MV/LT VFDs

a.	Energy Conservation measures taken at Power
Stations and Offices:

		

vii. Installation of roof top solar system.

		Following initiatives taken in Unit 1 during
annual overhaul
i.	Replacement of Air Pre-heater (APH)
Baskets and Sector Plates to reduce
losses
ii.	Replacement of High Pressure
Turbine by refurbished one

Transmission Division
a.
		

(HP)

iii.	Servicing of Intermediate Pressure (IP)
and Low pressure (LP) Turbine
iv.	Reduction in slip loss of Boiler Feed
Pump (BFP) hydraulic coupling after
modification in BFP coupling gear ratio
		

		

		

v.

vi.

Replacement of GGH Baskets for reduction
in power consumption of Induced Draft
(ID) fans
Replacement of Flue gas and Secondary
air duct expansion bellows to reduce
loading on fans

vii. HPH 5 and HPH -6 heaters parting plate
strengthening done to improve heat
transfer

i.

Reduction in auxiliary power consumption;

		

ii.

Improvement in plant heat rate;

		

iii.

Improvement in cycle efficiency;

		

iv.	Improvement in system reliability; and availability.

c. 	The capital investment on energy conservation
equipments:
		

i.	Replacement of existing lights with LED light.

		

ii.	De staging of Condensate Extraction
Pump (CEP) pump.

Energy conservation initiatives implemented
e.g. Refurbishment of Transformers, maintaining
voltage level, effective reactive power management,
replacement of conventional connections by new
crimp type and use of energy efficient equipments,
replacement of conventional lighting systems by
LED & energy savings of approximately 5 lacs kwh.
Received Energy Conservation Award from MEDA.

b.	Impact of measures outlined at (a) above on
Energy Consumption: 5 lacs kwh p.a.
c.	The steps taken by the company for utilising
alternate sources of energy: Solar Panels being
installed (Total 267 kW) at EHV Stations.
d.	The capital investment on energy conservation
equipment: ` 2.2 crs.
Distribution Division
a.

Energy Conservation measures under taken:

		

The Company conducts energy conservation
and energy efficiency (EC and EE) programmes
to create awareness in the society on the
importance of energy conservation and smart
usage of energy in order to reduce environmental
damage due to Green House Gas (CHG)
emission. The ultimate goal is to make every
citizen of licensed area of the Company a part
of this programme and make this programme as
citizen’s movement. Following are the initiatives
undertaken during financial year:

		

•	The Company continues to pursue other
programmes, such as, walkthrough energy
audit services at no cost to consumers,
under which company has covered over
60 consumer with potential saving of 0.6
million units.

b.	Impact of measures outlined at (a) above on
Energy Consumption:
		

Energy Conservation measures under taken:
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•	Under large scale program of replacement
of 50,000 energy efficient ceiling fan for
residential consumers, in this financial
year the Company has replaced 35,000
old inefficient ceiling fans with new BLDC
technology 32 watts ceiling fans.

		

•	Under similar large-scale program of
replacement
of
20,000
inefficient
refrigerator of residential consumers, in this
financial year Company has replaced 1,130
old refrigerators by 5-star refrigerators,
which resulted in 6,20,000 Units.

		

•	During current financial year the Company
has replaced 18,900 numbers of HPSV
streetlights by LED streetlights resulting
in to monthly energy savings of 0.48
million units. The current financial year
saving is 1.2 million units.

		

•	The Company through Urja Samvardhan
Upakaram programme, conducted workshops
in various academic institutions, offices, banks,
hospitals, industrial estates, housing societies,
slum areas, etc. reaching out to around 10,000
people and educated them on ‘Why to conserve
and how to conserve energy’.

		

b.	Impact of measures outlined at (a) above on
Energy Consumption:
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•	The Company under its “5-Star Split
Air Conditioner (AC) programme for
residential, commercial & Industrial
consumers” programme of replacing
old window AC units with new energy
efficient 5-star rated split ACs, replaced
3000 ACs till this financial year. The
estimated annual energy saving from
this programme is 2.8 million units and
cumulative estimated energy savings from
this program is 4.41 million units.
•	The Company has already completed
replacement of 25,000 old Ceiling Fans
by 5 Star Ceiling fans giving annual saving
of 1.5 MUs,
•	Replacement of 6,500 old Refrigerators by 5
Star Refrigerators for residential consumers
resulting in cumulative savings of 14.5 MUs

Annual Report 2018-19

Energy savings due initiatives taken during
financial year are 1.855 million units
amounting to 1913 tonnes of CO2 reduction.
The cumulative savings of energy efficiency
programs implemented by Company till this
finical year are of 35.2 million units.

c. 	The steps taken by the company for utilising
alternate sources of energy:
		

			Energy saving programs implemented by
the Company in past years, still continues
to accrue energy savings as under:
		

•	The Company is also facilitating and
promoting DELP (Domestic Efficient
Lighting Program) which is under Ministry
of Power, of the Government of India
under which 2.8 lakh LED bulbs and
tube lights are distributed in association
with Energy Efficiency Services Limited
(EESL) to residential consumers resulting
in cumulative energy saving of 8 million
units till date.

d.

		

B.

Through its proactive approach, Company
encourages and provide technical support to
its consumers to install roof top solar plants to
utilizing alternate source of energy. During this
financial year 7681 Kw capacity roof top solar
panels are installed by consumers of the Company
and generated 9.97 million units of solar energy.
The capital investment on energy conservation
equipments:
During FY 2018 -19 about ` 13 Lacs subsidy
given by the Company to its consumers under
various energy efficiency programs.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
Dahanu Power Station
a.	The Efforts made towards technology absorption

		

i.

Installation of modified hydraulic coupling
with new gear ratio to reduce auxiliary
power consumption.

		

ii.	Upgradation for remote calibration facility
in SOX and NOX analyzers for Unit 1 and 2.

		

iii.	Installation of air pressure booster system for
Boiler feed pump (BFP) recirculation valve
(RC) to increase the air pressure locally.
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b.

Benefits derived

		

i.	Benefit in terms of power saving per day
during daily operation.

		

ii.	Benefits observed are trouble free
operation & servicing requirement. Also, it
has new features like Remote calibration
of Analyzers helping in ensuring
continuous data to Central and State
pollution control boards.

		

c.	In case of imported technology (imported
during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year):
Sr Technology
No imported
i.
Gas Insulated
Bus duct
(220kV)
ii. Travelling Wave
Fault locator
iii. Optical CT (To
enable auto reclosure of hybrid
transmission
lines)
iv. Augmented
reality
technology
for outage
management
in 220kV EHV
Station & 220kV
Cable System

iii.	After installation of air boosters in all
Boiler feed pump (BFP) recirculation
valve valves, loading/Unloading setting of
compressor system reduced and results in
Energy saving per day.

Transmission Division
a.	The efforts made towards technology absorption:
		

		

i.	Online DC earth fault monitoring and
identification system.
ii.	Proposed to install Cyber Security Controls
for SCADA system as per IEC
62443,
NERC, NCIIPC guidelines & best global
practices

		

iii.	Use of block laying adhesive in place of
cement mortar.

		

iv.	Use of readymade epoxy plaster in place
of cement plaster.

		

b.

		

ii.	Cyber security Controls for SCADA will
enhance the security posture of SCADA
system against any cyber incidents

		

		

iii.	Use of block laying adhesive & ready-made
epoxy plaster – Environment friendly
products, optimization of water & labor,
fast construction activities.
iv.	Monopole Tower- Optimized RoW and
tower foundation foot print for overhead
transmission Lines.

2019-20

In Process

2018-19

Absorbed

2018-19

Absorbed

2018-19

Absorbed

a.	The efforts made towards technology absorption:
		

In order to promote Electric Mobility, Company
has procured 12 electric bikes and 6 electric cars
for its field staff. Company has set up 7 no of
electric vehicle charging stations, out of which
2 charging stations are set up for public electric
vehicles.

		

For increasing the reliability of its distribution
network, Company continuously tracks the
new technologies coming in the market. O&M
team in line with the philosophy of continuously
increasing reliability by adopted/implemented
new technology in 12 components of distribution
system.

Benefits derived:
i.	Fast identification & rectification of earth
fault in ungrounded DC system

Status

Distribution Division

v.	Use of monopoles in place of conventional
transmission towers.

		

Year of
import

b.

Benefits derived :

		

The benefits derived or likely to be derived out of
the technology absorption are as under:

		

Electric Vehicle Charging Stations:

		

Replacement of petrol vehicles by electric
vehicles to field staff resulted in to saving of
petrol to the tune of 10,000 liters annually.

		

Insulated Distribution Box:

		

i.

Ease in isolation of wires per phase for
testing/isolation etc.
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ii.

No. of meters allowed on one Fuse Unit
increased.

		

For ease of Jointing at sites during outages at
night

		

iii.

Neat wiring, eliminating back-to-back
connections on one stud

		

33 kV 400 Sqmm Cold Shrink Joint (QS 3000):

		

		

Street Light Theft Proof Pillar:

		

i.

QS 3000 Joint is a 66-kV single body Joint
with Capacitive Stress Control and removes
the requirement of Torch/Gas Cylinders

		

LT Insulation Solution (Heat Shrink Tube + LT
EPR Tape) replacing (Black Cotton Tape + PVC
Tapes):

		

Withstands continuous operating temperature
of more than 90 Deg C

Theft proof arrangement with vandalism
proof locking, locking plates.

		

ii.

Use of tripping circuit to avoid theft
beyond set current value.

		

iii.

Accessible only from Front & Pre-wired

		

SDF looping box for 400 A SDF:

		

Orange Silica Gel in both in DT and PT:

		

i.

		

Replaces the “Carcinogenic” Blue Silica Gel.

		

11 kV 400 Sqmm FRLSH Cables for first
sections:

		

Fire-resistant, Low-smoke, Halogen-free cables
introduced for sections inside the receiving
station building routed in open trenches

		

ii.

Provision of add-on looping box, which
can be connected in case of termination
of looping
Detachable add on box, to be connected
only in case of looping cables

		

Cable Ball Marker ID:

		

Ball marker is Cable/Pipe/Fault Locator having
following features:

		

DT Sub-Station Monitoring System installed as
a free Pilot:

		

i.

Locate Cable/Pipe path / route

		

		

ii.

Measure cable/pipe depth

Status monitoring of DTs, LV Panels, FPI &
Energy Meters for better asset management

		

iii.

Provides information of Joints, Cables in
trench, etc.

		

Natural Ester Hermetically Sealed DT:

		

i.

Hermetically sealed transformer having K
- class Insulating Fluid

		Expenditure incurred on R&D: NIL

		

ii.

Compact : Reduced Foot- print

C.

		

iii.

Fire safe

		

11 kV Joints with Mech Connectors:

i.

Total foreign exchange earnings : NIL

		

Removes the crimping process and saves time

ii.

Total foreign exchange outgo : ` 65.26 crs

		

LED Chargeable Lamps :
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c.

		

In case of imported technology (imported during
the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year) :
Nil

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Total foreign exchange earnings and outgo for the
financial year are as follows::
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Annexure F
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) Activities As
Per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
1.	A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy including
overview of projects or programmes proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or programmes
The Company has framed Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Policy which encompasses its philosophy and
guides its sustained efforts for undertaking and
supporting socially useful programs for the welfare &
sustainable development of the society.
The CSR Policy has been uploaded on the website of the
Company.
2.

The composition of the CSR Committee

•	Shri Sagar Adani : Member (w.e.f. 12 September, 2018)
2.
CSR project
or activity
identified

3.
Sector in which
the Project is
covered

3.	Average net profit/(loss) of the Company for last three
financial years:
Average net loss: ` 15.83 crs
4.	
Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the
amount as in item 3 above): `
In view of average loss, the Company was not required
to make mandatory CSR expenditure during the year
2018-19 as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
5.

Details of CSR spent for the financial year
a.

•	Shri Kandarp Patel: Chairman (w.e.f. 12 September,
2018)

1
Sr
No.

•	Shri K Jairaj : Member (w.e.f. 12 September, 2018)

4.
Projects or
Programs
1.Local area or
others-

b.
c.

Total Amount spent for the
Rs 0.97 crs *
financial year:
Amount unspent, if any:
Nil
Manner in which the amount is spent during
the financial year is detailed below:

5.
6.
Amount outlay Amount spent on
(budget) project the projects or
or program wise
programs
1.Direct
expenditure

2.State /district

1.

Activities at
Power Station
and Mumbai
Distribution
division
Total

Promoting
education,
environment
sustainability, rural
development

Dahanu and
Mumbai
Maharashtra

2.Overheads
0.97

0.97

0.97

7.
Amount spent:
Direct/ through
implementing
agency

Direct

0.97

*Amount spent voluntarily
6. 	In case the company has failed to spend the two
percent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof:
Not Applicable
7.	The CSR Committee hereby confirms that the
implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is
in compliance with the CSR objectives and the Policy
of the Company.
8.

Details of CSR programme
Adani Foundation is the CSR arm of the Adani Group.
Since its inception in 1996, the Foundation has been
working in four core areas of Education, Community
Health, Sustainable Livelihood Development and Rural
Infrastructure Development to extend its support to
communities. Working closely with the communities,
the foundation has been able to assume the role of
a facilitator by creating an enabling environment for
numerous families. Adani Foundation is currently

operational in 13 states reaching out to 5 Lakh plus
families from 1470 villages and towns of India with
a human-centric approach to make the processes
sustainable, transparent and replicable.
As a responsible business, the Company firmly
believes and endorses notion of sustainable
community development, especially for the
vulnerable and marginalized sections. It strives to
create an environment of coexistence where there
is an equitable sharing of resources followed by
sustained growth and development. The Company
has been promoting CSR activities through the Adani
Foundation. The Company has been strategically
supporting the CSR initiatives through Adani
Foundation.
SD/Kandarp Patel
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN 02947643)

SD/K Jairaj
Director
(DIN 01875126)
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members of Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
OPINION
We have audited the accompanying financial statements
of Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited (formerly known
as “Reliance Electric Generation and Supply Limited”)
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at 31 March, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended on that date, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March, 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income,
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.
BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit of the financial statements
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the financial statements.
EMPHASIS OF MATTER
We draw attention to Note No. 33 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019, which
describes the Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”)
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between the Company and Reliance Infrastructure
Limited as approved by the Honourable High Court of
Judicature at Bombay and other regulatory approvals and
the accounting for the resultant business combination
at fair values as at 1 April, 2018 - the appointed date
under the Scheme.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON
•

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s
report but does not include financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

•

Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

•

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

•

If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that
are
reasonable
and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting process.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

•

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal financial
control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of
a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS
1.

g)

With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of
the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during
the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

h)

With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on
our audit we report that:
a)

We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.

b)

In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of
those books.

c)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e)

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on 31 March,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March, 2019 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

		

i.	The Company has disclosed the impact
of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements.

		

ii.	The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

		

iii.	There were no amounts which were
required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

2.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act,
we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2019
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K. A. Katki
Partner)
(Membership No. 038568)
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Annexure “A”To the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date)
REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUBSECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
(“THE ACT”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited (formerly known as
“Reliance Electric Generation and Supply Limited”) (“the Company”)
as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL
FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.
MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.
INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
OPINION
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March
2019, based on the criteria for internal financial control over
financial reporting established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2019

K. A. Katki
Partner)
(Membership No. 038568)
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2019
Particulars

Notes

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital Work-In-Progress
Intangible Assets
Financial Assets
(i)
Investments
(ii) Loans
(iii) Other Financial Assets
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Other Non-current Assets
Total Non-current Assets
Current Assets
Inventories
Financial Assets
(i)
Investments
(ii) Trade Receivables
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above
(v) Loans
(vi) Other Financial Assets
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Total Assets before Regulatory Deferral Account
Regulatory Deferral Account - Assets
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share Capital
Perpetual Equity Instrument
Other Equity
Total Equity
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i)
Borrowings
(ii) Trade Payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and
(B) t otal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises.
Provisions
Other Non Current Liabilities
Total Non-current Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i)
Borrowings
(ii) Trade Payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and
(B) t otal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises.
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities
Provisions
Current Tax Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities before Regulatory Deferral Account
Regulatory Deferral Account - Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

(` in Crores)

As at
31 March, 2019

As at
31 March, 2018

11,797.77
239.75
985.06

-

6a
7
8
9
10

120.92
41.16
40.41
101.32
134.87
13,461.26

-

11

335.06

-

6b
12
13
14
7
8
10

43.55
425.70
91.40
283.47
8.53
1,113.71
103.04
2,404.46
15,865.72
1,105.59
16,971.31

0.14
1,500.00
1,500.14
1,500.14
1,500.14

15
16
17

3,400.05
257.23
386.89
4,044.17

0.05
(47.54)
(47.49)

18
19

7,902.19

1323.70

5
5a

39

-

-

21.80

-

20
21

438.54
224.83
8,587.36

1323.70

22
19

985.61

30.96

0.28

-

23
21
20
24
39

See accompanying notes forms part of the financial statements

1,170.99

-

1,603.81
238.24
60.21
9.08
4,068.22
12,655.58
271.56
16,971.31

191.09
1.88
223.93
1547.63
1500.14

As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ADANI ELECTRICITY MUMBAI LIMITED

K.A.Katki		
Partner
Membership No. 038568

Anil Sardana
Chairman
DIN: 00006867

Kandarp Patel
Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 02947643

Rakesh Tiwary
Chief Financial Officer

Abhijit Banerjee
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 21 May, 2019
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2019
Particulars

Notes

INCOME :
Revenue from Operations
Other Income
Total Income
EXPENSES :
Cost Of Power Purchased
Cost of Fuel
Transmission Charges
Purchases of traded goods
Employee Benefits Expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Other Expenses
Total expenses
Profit/(Loss) Before Movement in Regulatory Deferral Balance,
Exceptional Items and Tax
Add/(Less): Net Movement in Regulatory Deferral Balance
Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax
Exceptional items
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Tax Expense:
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Profit/(Loss) after tax
Total A
Other Comprehensive Income / (Expense)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
-Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans
Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Other Comprehensive Income / (Expense)
Total B
Total Comprehensive Income / (Expense)
Total (A+B)
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (in `)
(Face Value ` 10 Per Share)
Basic / Diluted earnings per Equity Share before net Movement in
Regulatory Deferral Balance
Basic / Diluted earnings per Equity Share after net Movement in
Regulatory Deferral Balance
See accompanying notes forms part of the financial statements

For the year ended
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018

7,493.93
149.28
7,643.21

-

2,959.17
1,193.56
391.19
10.68
867.88
1,001.82
492.71
714.65
7,631.66

47.36
0.13
47.49

11.55

(47.49)

157.59
169.14
169.14

(47.49)
(47.49)

41.98
65.68
107.66
61.48

(47.49)

0.03
0.03
61.51

(47.49)

(0.37)

(9,498.00)

0.22

(9,498.00)

25
26

27
28
5&5a
29

30

31

As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ADANI ELECTRICITY MUMBAI LIMITED

K.A.Katki		
Partner
Membership No. 038568

Anil Sardana
Chairman
DIN: 00006867

Kandarp Patel
Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 02947643

Rakesh Tiwary
Chief Financial Officer

Abhijit Banerjee
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 21 May, 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date : 21 May, 2019
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March, 2019
A.

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(` in Crores)
Particulars
Balance as at 1 April, 2017

No. Shares

Amount

50,000

0.05

Issue of shares during the year

-

-

50,000

0.05

Issue of shares during the year

3,40,00,00,000

3,400.00

BALANCE AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

3,40,00,50,000

3,400.05

Balance as at 31 March, 2018

B.

PERPETUAL EQUITY INSTRUMENT - SHAREHOLDER LOAN
(` in Crores)
Particulars

Amount

Balance as at 1 April, 2017

-

Raised during the year

-

Balance as at 31 March, 2018

-

i) Raised during the year

243.06

ii) Distribution accrued thereon (net)

14.17

BALANCE AS AT 31 MARCH, 2019
B.

257.23

OTHER EQUITY
(` in Crores)
Particulars

Reserves and Surplus
Capital
Reserve

Contingency
Reserve Fund

Total
Retained
Earnings

Balance as at 1 April, 2017

-

-

(0.05)

(0.05)

Profit/(Loss) for the year

-

-

(47.49)

(47.49)

Other comprehensive Income / (Expense) for the year

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive Income / (Expense) for the year

-

-

(47.49)

(47.49)

Balance as at 31 March, 2018

-

-

(47.54)

(47.54)

Balance as at 1 April, 2018

-

-

(47.54)

(47.54)

Acquired on Business Combination

-

157.89

-

157.89

230.78

-

-

230.78

Profit/(Loss) for the year

-

-

61.48

61.48

Other comprehensive Income / (Expense) for the year

-

-

0.03

0.03

Total comprehensive Income / (Expense) for the year

-

-

61.51

61.51

Distribution on Perpetual Equity Instrument

-

-

(15.75)

(15.75)

Transfer to Contingency Reserve

-

18.77

(18.77)

-

230.78

176.66

(20.55)

386.89

Arising on Business Combination

BALANCE AS AT 31 MARCH, 2019

See accompanying notes forms part of the financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ADANI ELECTRICITY MUMBAI LIMITED

K.A.Katki		
Partner
Membership No. 038568

Anil Sardana
Chairman
DIN: 00006867

Kandarp Patel
Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 02947643

Rakesh Tiwary
Chief Financial Officer

Abhijit Banerjee
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 21 May, 2019
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Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 March, 2019
(` in Crores)
Particulars
A.

For the year ended
31 March, 2019

For the year ended
31 March, 2018

169.14

(47.49)

(44.41)

-

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest Income
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain

(3.40)

Amortisation of Consumer Contribution

(7.42)

-

Gain On Sale / Fair Value Of Current Investments Measured at FVTPL

(2.01)

-

Gain On Sale / Fair Value Of Current Investments Measured at FVTPL Contingency Reserve Fund

(2.47)

-

1,001.82

47.36

492.71

-

17.28

-

Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net)
Provision for Doubtful Debts / Advances / Deposits

24.58

-

1,645.82

(0.13)

Trade Receivables

(24.59)

-

Inventories

(20.48)

-

Financial Assets - Current / Non Current

330.45

-

Other Assets - Current / Non Current

(23.07)

-

Regulatory Deferral Account - Assets

39.47

-

(78.86)

-

(1,075.83)

-

49.03

-

(69.63)

1.88

772.31

1.75

(32.90)

-

739.41

1.75

(552.20)

-

Operating Profit / (Loss) before working capital changes
Changes in Working Capital:
Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in Assets :

Adjustment for Increase / (Decrease) in Liabilities :
Trade Payables
Financial Liabilities - Current / Non Current
Provisions - Current / Non Current
Other Liabilities - Current / Non Current
Cash generated from operations
Tax paid (Net)
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities (A)
B.

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on PPE (incl Capital advance)
Proceeds from Sale of PPE
Consideration Paid towards Business Acquisition
Purchase of Mutual Funds / Other Investments (Net)
Bank balances not considered as Cash & Cash Equivalents
Interest Received

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities (B)
C.

8.68

-

(10,850.00)

(1,500.00)

(18.20)

-

(281.41)

-

39.03

-

(11,654.10)

(1,500.00)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in Service Line Contribution

21.51

-

Proceeds from Long-term borrowings

9,279.79

1,503.70

Repayment of Long-term borrowings

(1,757.00)

-

Proceeds from Short-term borrowings

2,055.35

30.85

Repayment of Short-term borrowings

(1,100.70)

-

Proceeds from issue of equity shares

3,400.00

-
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Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 March, 2019 (Contd.)
(` in Crores)
Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2019

For the year ended
31 March, 2018

Proceeds from Perpetual Equity Instrument

243.06

-

Distribution on Perpetual Equity Instrument

(1.58)

-

Interest & Other Borrowing Cost
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities (C)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

(1,134.48)

(36.26)

11,005.95

1,498.29

91.26

0.04

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April (Opening Balance)

0.14

0.10

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March (Closing Balance)

91.40

0.14

For the year ended
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018

77.28
2.45
2.61
9.06
91.40

0.14
0.14

Cash and Cash Equivalents Includes
- Refer Note 13
Balances with banks
- In current accounts
- Fixed Deposits
Cash On Hand
Cheques / Drafts On Hand
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents
See accompanying notes forms part of the financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ADANI ELECTRICITY MUMBAI LIMITED

K.A.Katki		
Partner
Membership No. 038568

Anil Sardana
Chairman
DIN: 00006867

Kandarp Patel
Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 02947643

Rakesh Tiwary
Chief Financial Officer

Abhijit Banerjee
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 21 May, 2019
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019
1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

	Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited (“AEML”) (“The
Company”),formerly known as Reliance Electric
Generation and Supply Limited, is a public limited
company incorporated and domiciled in India having
its registered office at Adani House, Nr. Mithakhali
Six Roads, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009,
Gujarat, India. It is wholly owned subsidiary of Adani
Transmission Limited (ATL) and ultimate holding
entity is S. B. Adani Family Trust (SBAFT). During
the year the company has acquired the Integrated
Mumbai Power Business of Reliance Infrastructure
Limited (RINFRA) effective 1 April, 2018 through
a Court sanctioned scheme of arrangement. The
integrated Mumbai Generation, Transmission and
Distribution (GTD) Business caters to ~3.03 million
customers, under a license provided to transmit
and distribute electricity to consumers in Mumbai
in an area of ~400 Sq km in and around suburbs of
Mumbai inclusive of areas covered under the Mira
Bhayender Municipal Corporation , making it the
country’s largest private sector integrated power
utility, entailing ~1,890 MW of power distribution
along with generation facilities (500 MW coal
based) and over 540 ckt km of transmission
network.
	
The Tariff to be charged to the consumers is
regulated by Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission (“MERC”).
	These financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 March, 2019 were authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 21 May, 2019.
2	SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Statement of Compliance
	The financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (IndAS) as notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 read
with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) (as amended from time to time).
2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation
	The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis except for the following assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair
value.
• 	financial assets and liabilities acquired on
business combination that are measured at
fair value-refer note 32;

•	certain financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value;		
•	defined benefit plans
measured at fair value;

-

planned

assets

	The financial statements have been prepared
in “Indian Rupees” which is also the Company’s
functional currency and all amounts, are rounded to
the nearest Crore with two decimals, (Transactions
below `50,000.00 denoted as `0.00), unless
otherwise stated.
	The comparative standalone financial statements
of the Company, for the year ended 31 March 2018
prepared in accordance with Ind AS were audited
by M/S M G Bhagat & Co.
	Accounting policies have been consistently applied
except where a newly issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.
2.3 Current versus Non-Current Classification
	The Company presents assets and liabilities in
the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when
it is:		
•	Expected to be realised or intended to be sold
or consumed in normal operating cycle; or
•	Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
•	Expected to be realised within twelve months
after the reporting period; or		
•	Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:		
•	It is expected to be settled in normal operating
cycle; or 		
•	It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
•	It is due to be settled within twelve months
after the reporting period; or 		
•	There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period;
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	The Company classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
	Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
	The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.
2.4 1

Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”)

	Property, plant and equipment acquired on business
are recorded at fair value - refer note no 32.
	In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment (“Assets”)
pertaining to Mumbai Generation, Transmission
and Distribution business acquired from Reliance
Infrastructure Limited under a Court sanctioned
scheme of arrangement with an appointed date of 1
April, 2018, in line with the requirements of the Court
Scheme, the Company has accounted for such Assets
at their respective fair values as at 1 April, 2018 based
on valuation done by a Government registered valuer.
	Subsequent additions to the assets on or after
1 April, 2018 are accounted for at cost. Cost includes
purchase price (net of trade discount & rebates) and
any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use and
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with IndAS 23. Capital work-in-progress
is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss,
if any. When significant parts of plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement
if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Decapitalisation
	An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.
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Depreciation
	Depreciation commences when an asset is ready for
its intended use. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Regulated Assets
	Subject to the below, depreciation on property,
plant and equipment in respect of Mumbai
Generation, Transmission and Distribution business
of the Company covered under Part B of Schedule
II of the Companies Act, 2013, has been provided on
the straight line method at the rates and using the
methodology as notified by the regulator.
	For certain types of assets in respect of which
useful life is not specified in MERC Multi Year
Tariff Regulations (“MYT regulations”), useful life
as prescribed under Schedule-II of Companies Act,
2013 is considered.
	In respect of assets (other than Dahanu Thermal
Power Station-DTPS) which have been accounted
at fair value, considering life as specified in MYT
regulations, depreciation is provided on Straight
Line Method (considering a salvage value of 5%)
over their balance useful life. In respect of DTPS
based on technical evaluation, the balance useful
life has been determined as 15 years.
	Salvage value in respect of assets which have not
been accounted at fair value has been considered
at 10%.
	The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:Type of Asset
Building
Plant and Equipment
Distribution Line / Transmission Cable
Furniture and Fixtures
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Vehicles
Plant and Equipment, Building at DTPS

Useful lives
60 Years
25 Years
35 Years
10 Years
5 Years
3 - 6 Years
8 - 10 Years
15 Years

	The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
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2

Intangible Assets

3

	Intangible assets acquired on business are recorded
at fair value - refer note no 32.		
	In respect of Intangible Asset (“Assets”) pertaining to
Mumbai Generation, Transmission and Distribution
business acquired from Reliance Infrastructure
Limited under a Court sanctioned scheme of
arrangement with an appointed date of 1 April, 2018,
in line with the requirements of the Court Scheme,
the Company has accounted for such Assets at their
respective fair values as at 1 April, 2018 based on
valuation done by professional valuation firm.
	Subsequent additions to the assets on or after 1 April,
2018 are accounted for at cost.

Derecognition of Intangible assets.
	An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised
in statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Useful life
	Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another asset.
	Intangible Assests with Indefinite lives are not
amortised but are tested for impairment on annual
basis.
	Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as
follows:Type of Asset
Transmission License
Computer Software

Useful lives
Indefinite
3 years

Impairment of PPE and intangible assets

	PPE (including CWIP) and intangible assets with
finite lives, are reviewed for impairment, whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying values may not be recoverable.
Intangible assets having indefinite useful lives
are tested for impairment, at-least annually and
whenever circumstances indicate that it may be
impaired.
	For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (that is, higher of the fair
value less costs to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis, unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined at the
cash generating unit (“CGU”) level to which the
said asset belongs. If such individual assets or CGU
are considered to be impaired, the impairment to
be recognised in the statement of profit and loss
is measured by the amount by which the carrying
value of the asset / CGU exceeds their estimated
recoverable amount and allocated on pro-rata basis.
	Impairment losses are reversed in the statement of
profit and loss and the carrying value is increased
to its revised recoverable amount provided that this
amount does not exceed the carrying value that
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the said asset / CGU in
previous years.
2.5 Cash & Cash Equivalents
	Cash & cash equivalents comprises cash on hand,
cash at bank and short term deposit with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
& cash equivalents include balance with banks
which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash & cash equivalents consists of cash at banks
and short term deposits as defined above, as they
are considered an integrel part of the Company’s
cash management.
2.6 Cash Flow Statement		
	Cash flows are reported using the indirect method,
where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows.
51

Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019 (Contd.)
The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.

whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.		

2.7 Financial Instruments		
	A financial instrument is any contract that gives
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
	Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

		On initial recognition, the Company makes
an irrevocable election on an instrument-byinstrument basis to present the subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income pertaining to investments in equity
instruments, other than equity investment
which are held for trading. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative
gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the investments.

3

2.8 Financial assets		
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.
All recognised financial assets are subsequently
measured in their entirety at either amortised cost
or fair value, depending on the classification of the
financial assets.

1

Financial assets at amortised cost

		Financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is to hold
these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

2	
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)		
		A financial asset is subsequently measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income if it is held within a business model
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 inancial assets at fair value through profit or
F
loss (FVTPL)		

		All financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost are measured at FVTPL.

4

Impairment of investments		

		The Company reviews its carrying value
of investments carried at cost annually, or
more frequently when there is indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
accounted in the statement of profit and loss.

5

Derecognition		

		A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company’s balance sheet)
when:		
		

-	the right to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired, or		

		

-	the Company has transferred its right to
receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company
has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor
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retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.		
		When the Company has transferred its right to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Company has retained.

6

Impairment of financial assets

		The Company assesses at each date of balance
sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires
expected credit losses to be measured through a
loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime
expected losses for all contract assets and / or
all trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing transaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount
equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at
an amount equal to the life time expected credit
losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition.
2.9 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1

Classification as debt or equity

		Debt and equity instruments issued by The
Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

2

Equity instruments

		An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by The Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

3

Financial liabilities		

		All financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses
are recognised in statement of profit and

loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR) amortisation process. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

4

Derecognition		

		A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.
2.10 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
	The Company determines classification of financial
assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments
and financial liabilities. For financial assets
which are debt instruments, a reclassification
is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the
business model are expected to be infrequent. The
Company’s senior management determines change
in the business model as a result of external or
internal changes which are significant to the
Company’s operations. Such changes are evident
to external parties. A change in the business model
occurs when the Company either begins or ceases
to perform an activity that is significant to its
operations. If the Company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively
from the reclassification date which is the first day
of the immediately next reporting period following
the change in business model. The Company does
not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
2.11 Offsetting of financial instruments
	Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
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intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
2.12 Inventories

		

	Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on weighted average basis. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of
inventory includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Unserviceable/damaged
stores and spares are identified and written down
based on technical evaluation.
2.13 Business combinations
 he Company accounts for its business combinations
T
(other than common control) under acquisition
method of accounting. Acquisition related costs
are recognised in statement of profit and loss as
incurred. The acquiree’ s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities that meet the condition for
recognition are recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

	
If the initial accounting for a business combination

is incomplete as at the reporting date in which the
combination occurs, the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired in a business combination are
measured at their provisional fair values at the date
of acquisition. Subsequently adjustments to the
provisional values are made within the measurement
period, if new information is obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
and, if known, would have resulted in the recognition
of those assets and liabilities as of that date;
otherwise the adjustments are recorded in the period
in which they occur.

	
Purchase

consideration paid in excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill.
Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the cost of acquisition, after reassessing the
fair values of the net assets and contingent liabilities,
the excess is recognised as capital reserve.

	Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred,
the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the
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liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used
to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in
an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired
over the aggregate consideration transferred, then
the gain is recognised in other comprehensive
income (OCI) and accumulated in equity as capital
reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of
bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain
directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing
the same through OCI.
2.14 Foreign currencies
	ThefunctionalcurrencyoftheCompanyisIndianRupee`.
Income and expenses in foreign currencies are
recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date
of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date
and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement
and restatement are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are
not retranslated.
Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in
the period in which they arise except for exchange
differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets
when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs on those foreign currency borrowings.
2.15 Revenue recognition
	Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

1

Transmission of Power		

		Revenue from transmission of power is
recognised net of cash discount over time for
transmission of electricity. The Company as
per the prevalent tariff regulations is required
to recover its Annual Revenue Requirement
(‘ARR’) comprising of expenditure on account
of operations and maintenance expenses,
financing costs, taxes and assured return on
regulator approved equity with additional
incentive for operational efficiencies.
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		Input method is used to recognise revenue
based on the Company’s efforts or inputs to
the satisfaction of a performance obligation to
deliver power.		
		As per tariff regulations, the Company
determines ARR and any surplus/shortfall in
recovery of the same is accounted in revenue.

2

Sale of Power - Distribution 		

		Revenue from sale of power is recognised
net of cash discount over time for each unit
of electricity delivered at the pre determined
rate.		

3

Rendering of Services		

		Revenue from a contract to provide services is
recognised over time based on output method
where direct measurements of value to the
customer based on survey’s of performance
completed to date. Revenue is recognised
net of cash discount at a point in time at the
contracted rate.		

4

Interest on Overdue Receivables / Delay
Payment Charges

		Consumers are billed on a monthly basis and
are given average credit period of 15 to 30 days
for payment. No delayed payment charges
(‘DPC’) / interest on arrears (‘IOA’) is charged for
the initial 15-30 days from the date of receipt
of invoice by customers. Thereafter, DPC / IOA
is charged / accured at the rate prescribed in
the tariff order on the outstanding amount.

5

Sale of Traded Goods :		

		Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed,
at which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:		
• 	the Company has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;		
•

the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably; and		

• 	it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
The Company.
	There is no significant judgement involved while
evaluating the timing as to when customers obtain
control of promised goods and services.

6

Amortisation of Service Line Contribution

	Contributions by consumers towards items of
property, plant and equipment, which require
an obligation to provide electricity connectivity
to the consumers, are recognised as a credit to
deferred revenue. Such revenue is recognised
over the useful life of the property, plant and
equipment.

7

Interest income:		

		Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
2.16 Regulatory Deferral Account
	The Company determines revenue gaps (i.e. surplus/
shortfall in actual returns over returns entitled) in
respect of its regulated operations in accordance
with the provisions of Ind AS 114 “Regulatory
Deferral Accounts” read with the Guidance Note on
Rate Regulated Activities issued by ICAI and based
on the principles laid down under the relevant Tariff
Regulations/Tariff Orders notified by the Electricity
Regulator and the actual or expected actions
of the regulator under the applicable regulatory
framework. Appropriate adjustments in respect
of such revenue gaps are made in the regulatory
deferral account of the respective year for the
amounts which are reasonably determinable and no
significant uncertainty exists in such determination.
These adjustments/accruals representing revenue
gaps are carried forward as Regulatory deferral
accounts debit/credit balances (Regulatory Assets/
Regulatory Liabilities) as the case may be in the
financial statements, which would be recovered/
refunded through future billing based on future
tariff determination by the regulator in accordance
with the electricity regulations.
	The Company presents separate line items in the
balance sheet for:
i.	the total of all regulatory deferral account
debit balances; and		
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ii.	the total of all regulatory deferral account
credit balances.

		-	The date that the Company recognises
related restructuring costs.		

	A separate line item is presented in the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the net movement in regulatory
deferral account. Regulatory assets/ liabilities
on deferred tax expense/income is presented
separately in the tax expense line item.

		Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. The Company recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss:		

2.17 Borrowing costs
	Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
	Interest income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
	All other borrowing costs are recognised in
statement of profit and loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
2.18 Employee benefits

1

Defined contribution plan:

		Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

2

Defined benefit plans:

		The cost of providing benefits under
the defined benefit plan is determined
using the projected unit credit method.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods. Past service
costs are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss on the earlier of:		
		-	The date of the plan amendment or
curtailment, and
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		-	Service costs comprising current service
costs, past-service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non routine
settlements; and		
		

-

Net interest expense or income.

		A liability for a termination benefit is recognised
at the earlier of when the entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit
and when the entity recognises any related
restructuring costs.
		The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan
and the present value of the gratuity obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.		
		The parameter most subject to change is the
discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of
government bonds. The mortality rate is based
on publicly available mortality tables. Those
mortality tables tend to change only at interval
in response to demographic changes. Future
salary increases and gratuity increases are
based on expected future inflation rates.

3

 urrent and other non-current employee
C
benefits

		A liability is recognised for benefits accruing
to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service.
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		Liabilities recognised in respect of current
employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for the related service.

charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.
Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are not
transferred to the Company as lessee are
classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases.

		Liabilities recognised in respect of other noncurrent employee benefits are measured at
the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Company
in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date.

4

 hort-term and other long-term employee
S
benefits

		A liability is recognised for benefits accruing
to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service. Liabilities recognised
in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
related service. Liabilities recognised in respect
of other long-term employee benefits are
measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by
the Company in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.
2.19 Leases
	The determination of whether an arrangement is
(or contains) a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The
arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

1

As a lessee		

		Leases of property, plant and equipment where
the Company, as lessee, has substantially
obtained all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the
fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in borrowings
or other financial liabilities as appropriate.
Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is

2

As a lessor		

		Leases in which the Company does not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. Rental income from
operating lease is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease unless
the receipts are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases.
		Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.
		Leases are classified as finance leases when
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership transfer from the Company to
the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under
finance leases are recorded as receivables
at the entity’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding in respect of the lease.

3

Lease Hold Land		

		The lease period for lease hold land varies from
land to land and is in the range of 35 Years to
99 years. The Company considers the leases
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as operating lease considering the extension
of lease is not assured and subject to certain
conditions. Accordingly the lease premium is
amortised over the period of lease.
2.20 Taxation
	Tax on Income comprises current tax and deferred
tax. These are recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a
business combination, or items recognised directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income.

1

Current tax		

		Current income tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date
in the countries where the Company operates
and generates taxable income.
		Current income tax relating to items
recognised outside statement of profit and
loss is recognised outside statement of profit
and loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Current tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

2

Deferred tax		

		Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction other than a business combination
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.		
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		The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
		Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
		Deferred tax relating to items recognised
outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
		Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the relevant
entity intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.		
Deferred tax assets include Minimum
Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance
with the tax laws in India, which is likely to
give future economic benefits in the form of
availability of set off against future income
tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised
as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet
when the asset can be measured reliably and
it is probable that the future economic benefit
associated with the asset will be realised. The
Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement”
asset at each reporting date and writes down
the asset to the extent that it is no longer
probable that it will pay normal tax during the
specified period.		
		Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
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and loss. An onerous contract is considered
to exist where the Company has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received
from the contract.

2.21 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted earnings per equity share is
computed by dividing the net profit attributable to
the equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also
the weighted average number of equity shares
that could have been issued upon conversion of
all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive
potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been
actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market
value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted
as of the beginning of the period, unless issued
at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares
are determined independently for each period
presented.		
The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all
periods presented for any share splits and bonus
shares issues including for changes effected prior
to the approval of the financial statements by the
Board of Directors.
2.22	Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

1

Provisions		
Provisions are recognised when the Company
has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Company will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of
the time value of money is material).
Present obligations arising under onerous
contracts are recognised and measured as
provisions with charge to statement of profit

2

Contingent liability
A possible obligation that arises from past
events and the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of
the enterprise are disclosed as contingent
liability and not provided for. Such liability is
not disclosed if the possibility of outflow of
resources is remote.

3

Contingent assets		
A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control
of the entity. Contingent assets are not
recognised but disclosed only when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

2.23	Dividend distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company
The Company recognises a liability to make
dividend distributions to its equity holders when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution
is no longer at its discretion. As per the corporate
laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it
is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding
amount is recognised directly in equity.
In case of Interim Dividend, the liability is recognised
on its declaration by the Board of Directors.

3.1 Standards issued but not effective
The amendments to standards that are issued,
but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Company’s financial statements are
disclosed below. The Company intends to
adopt these standards, if applicable, when
they become effective.

1

Ind AS 116 - Leases
Ind AS 116 Leases was notified in March 2019
and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or
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after 1 April, 2019. It sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to account for all leases under a single onbalance sheet model similar to the accounting
for finance leases under Ind AS 17. Lessor
accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially
unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind
AS 17. Ind AS 116 requires lessees and lessors
to make more extensive disclosures than under
Ind AS 17. The Company is in the process of
evaluating the requirements of the standard
and its impact on its financial statements.

loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates would depend upon the
probability. The Company does not expect any
significant impact of the amendment on its
financial statements.

3

The amendments relate to the existing
requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding
termination rights in order to allow
measurement at amortised cost (or, depending
on the business model, at fair value through
other comprehensive income) even in the
case of negative compensation payments. The
Company does not expect this amendment to
have any impact on its financial statements.

2	Ind AS 12 – Income taxes (amendments relating
to income tax consequences of dividend and
uncertainty over income tax treatments)
The amendment relating to income tax
consequences of dividend clarify that an entity
shall recognise the income tax consequences of
dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the entity
originally recognised those past transactions
or events. The company does not expect
any impact from this pronouncement. It is
relevant to note that the amendment does
not amend situations where the entity pays a
tax on dividend which is effectively a portion
of dividends paid to taxation authorities on
behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid or
payable to taxation authorities continues to
be charged to equity as part of dividend in
accordance with Ind AS 12.
The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12
specifies that the amendment is to be applied
to the determination of taxable profit (tax
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty
over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12.
It outlines the following: (1) the entity has to
use judgement, to determine whether each
tax treatment should be considered separately
or whether some can be considered together.
The decision should be based on the approach
which provides better predictions of the
resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity
is to assume that the taxation authority will
have full knowledge of all relevant information
while examining any amount (3) entity has
to consider the probability of the relevant
taxation authority accepting the tax treatment
and the determination of taxable profit (tax
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Ind AS 109 – Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

4	Ind AS 19 – Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement		
The amendments clarify that if a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs,
it is mandatory that the current service cost
and the net interest for the period after the
re-measurement are determined using the
assumptions used for the re- measurement.
In addition, amendments have been included
to clarify the effect of a plan amendment,
curtailment
or
settlement
on
the
requirements regarding the asset ceiling. The
Company does not expect this amendment to
have any significant impact on its financial
statements.

5

Ind AS 23 – Borrowing Costs		

		The amendments clarify that if any specific
borrowing remains outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the
funds that an entity borrows generally when
calculating the capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. The Company does not expect
any impact from this amendment.

6	Ind AS 28 – Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures		
		The amendments clarify that an entity
applies Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, to
long-term interests in an associate or joint
venture that form part of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture but to
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which the equity method is not applied. The
company does not currently have any such
long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures.		

7	Ind AS 103 – Business Combinations and Ind
AS 111 - Joint Arrangements		
The amendments to Ind AS 103 relating to
re-measurement clarify that when an entity
obtains control of a business that is a joint
operation, it re-measures previously held
interests in that business. The amendments to
Ind AS 111 clarify that when an entity obtains
joint control of a business that is a joint
operation, the entity does not re-measure
previously held interests in that business.
The Company will apply the pronouncement
if and when it obtains control / joint control
of a business that is a joint operation.

3.2	Change in accounting policies and disclosures
		
Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
		Ind AS 115 was issued on 28 March, 2018 and
supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts
and Ind AS 18 Revenue and it applies, with
limited exceptions, to all revenue arising
from contracts with its customers. Ind AS
115 establishes a five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and requires that revenue be
recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer.
		Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise
judgement, taking into consideration all of
the relevant facts and circumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts
with their customers. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract and the costs
directly related to fulfilling a contract. In
addition, the standard requires extensive
disclosures.
		The application of Ind AS 115 did not have
any significant impact on recognition and
measurement of revenue and related items
in the financial results.

4	Critical accounting judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Company’s accounting
policies, management of the Company is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods. Detailed information about each of these
estimates and judgements is included in relevant
notes together with information about the basis
of calculation for each affected line item in the
financial statements.		
The areas involving
judgements are:

critical

estimates

or

Fair valuation of Property Plant & Equipment
including Intangible assets accquired on business
combination - Note 32.
Assessment of lease classification in respect of long
term power purchase agreement - Note 36 (ii).
Judgement to estimate the amount of provision required
or to determine required disclosure related to litigation
and claims against the Company - Note 35.
Estimates used for impairment of transmission
license - Note 34.
Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Note 38.
	Estimation of current tax and deferred tax expense - Note 30.
	Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated. They are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the
Company and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.
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-

-

Eliminated on disposal of assets

CLOSING ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION AS ON 31 MARCH, 2019

27.22

147.08

3,866.40

-

3,761.62

224.64

1.82

226.46

-

4,507.71

184.76

-

184.76

-

4,692.47

-

288.02

4,404.45

-

6.44

0.43

-

0.43

-

6.87

-

-

6.87

-

There were no Property Plant and Equipment with the Company in the previous year.

823.66

31.16

-

31.16

-

854.82 3,986.26

-

34.64

820.18

-

Buildings Plant and Distribution Railway
Equipment Systems
Siding

1.18

0.08

-

0.08

-

1.26

-

-

1.26

-

Jetty

12.97

4.80

-

4.80

-

17.77

-

2.53

15.24

-

11.29

3.46

0.07

3.53

-

14.75

0.63

1.91

13.47

-

6.12

7.96

-

7.96

-

14.08

-

3.15

10.93

-

16.71

18.96

0.02

18.98

-

35.67

0.02

10.68

25.01

-

27.88

490.26

11,817.41

-

482.02

1.92

483.94

-

13.20 11,797.77

5.77

0.01

5.78

-

18.97 12,279.79

0.01

2.25

16.73

-

Total

(` in Crores)
Furniture Vehicles Office
Computers Electrical
and
Equipment
Installations
Fixtures

(ii) All the above assets are pledged as security with the Lenders against borrowings with pari passu charge.						

(i)

Notes:

2,636.87

-

Depreciation charge for the year

NET CARRYING AMOUNT 31 MARCH, 2019

-

As at 1 April, 2018

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

2,636.87

-

CLOSING GROSS CARRYING
AMOUNT AS ON 31 MARCH, 2019

-

Disposals

2,636.87

Freehold
Land

Additions

Acquisitions on Business
Combination as on 1 April, 2018

As at 1 April, 2018

Gross carrying amount

Particulars

NOTE 5 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019 (Contd.)

Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited

Corporate Overview

Statutory Reports

Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019 (Contd.)
NOTE 5A:

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(` in Crores)

Particulars

Computer
Software

Transmission
License

Total

-

-

-

Additions on Business Combination as on 1 April, 2018

11.35

981.62

992.97

Additions

0.86

-

0.86

-

-

-

12.21

981.62

993.83

Gross carrying amount
As at 1 April, 2018

Disposal
Closing Gross carrying amount as on 31 March, 2019
Accumulated amortisation & Impairment
As at 1 April, 2018
Amortisation charge during the year
Disposal

-

-

-

8.77

-

8.77

-

-

-

Closing accumulated amortisation as on 31 March, 2019

8.77

-

8.77

Net carrying amount - 31 March, 2019

3.44

981.62

985.06

Notes:
(i)

There were no Intangible Assets with the Company in the previous year.

(ii) The above Intangible Assets are other than internally generated Intangible Assets.
(iii) 	Transmission License was acquired as part of the business acquisition as described in Note 32. The License is
valid for 25 years from 16 August, 2011 to 15 August, 2036. The license can be further extended at minimal cost,
considering similar extensions have happened in the past. Based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, the
license is considered by the Company as having an indefinite useful life, as there is no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the transmission business related assets are expected to generate net cash inflows for the
Company.
(iv) All the above assets are pledged as security with the Lenders against borrowings with pari passu charge.
Depreciation / Amortisation

For the year ended
31 March, 2019
483.94
8.77
492.71

Depreciation on Tangible Assets
Add : Amortisation on Intangible Assets
Total
6

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018
-

INVESTMENTS

6a Non-current investments
Investment in Government or Trust
Securities at amortised cost
Contingency Reserve Investments (Quoted)
8.12% Central Government of India - 2020
8.27% Central Government of India - 2020
7.68% Central Government of India - 2023
7.68% Central Government of India - 2023
Total

Face Value of `
unless otherwise
specified

No of Shares

As at
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018

100
100
100
100

75,00,000
15,00,000
15,00,000
13,00,000

76.89
15.39
15.34
13.30
120.92

-
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Face Value of `
unless otherwise
specified
Aggregate Market Value of Quoted
Investments
Aggregate Carrying Value of Quoted
Investments
Aggregate Carrying Value of Unquoted
Investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in the
value of investments
6b Current investments
Investment in Mutual Funds units
at FVTPL (Unquoted) Contingency
Reserve Investments
SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growth
(NAV Rs 2,928.57)

1,000

No of Shares

1,48,706.31

Aggregate Market Value of Quoted
Investments
Aggregate Carrying Value of Quoted
Investments
Aggregate Carrying Value of Unquoted
Investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in the
value of investments
7

-

120.92

-

-

-

-

-

43.55

-

43.55

-

-

-

-

-

43.55

-

-

-

(` in Crores)
Non-Current
Current
As at
As at
As at
As at
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018

Housing loans to employee against
hypothecation of the property
(Secured, considered good)
Loans to employees
(Unsecured, considered good)

35.79

-

4.29

-

5.37

-

4.24

-

41.16

-

8.53

-

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - AT AMORTISED COST

Particulars

(Unsecured, considered good unless
otherwise stated)
Security Deposits
Considered Good
Considered doubtful
Less : Provision For Doubtful Deposits
Total
Fixed Deposit with Banks##
Other Financial Assets*
64

120.42

LOANS - AT AMORTISED COST

Particulars

8

As at
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018
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(` in Crores)
Non-Current
Current
As at
As at
As at
As at
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018

18.99
1.05
20.04
(1.05)
18.99
16.64
-

-

503.26

-
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Particulars

Unbilled Revenue
Regulatory Assets other than Distribution

(` in Crores)
Non-Current
Current
As at
As at
As at
As at
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
610.45
4.78
40.41
1,113.71
-

Note :
## Represents margin money with banks for guarantees issued.
* In respect of the standby charges dispute with the Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL), Hon. Supreme Court vide its order
dated 2 May, 2019 has dismissed the appeals filed by RINFRA (substituted with AEML subsequently) / TPCL against the
Appellate Tribunal of Electricity (“ATE”) order dated 20 December, 2006. Accordingly, the ATE order has reached finality.
Based on the said ATE order and its interpretation thereof, AEML subject to TPCL confirmation, has booked an amount of
` 503.26 (including interest) as recoverable from TPCL as at 31 March, 2019. In terms of the Share Purchase Agreement
entered into by the Company, ATL and RINFRA, the amount recoverable from TPCL is payable to RINFRA on receipt of the
same from TPCL.
9

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

As at
31 March, 2019
101.32
101.32

Deferred tax Assets
Deferred tax Liabilities
Net Deferred Tax Assets
Also refer Note 30(2)
10

OTHER ASSETS

Particulars

(` in Crores)
Non-Current
Current
As at
As at
As at
As at
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018

(Unsecured, Considered good)
Advance to Suppliers
Advance towards Business acquisition
Balances with Government authorities
Unamortized Premium for Lease hold Land
Prepaid Expenses
Capital advances
Advance to Employees
11

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018
-

12.01
7.70
115.16
134.87

-

79.43
0.85
0.16
10.20
12.40
103.04

1,500.00
1,500.00

INVENTORIES

As at
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018

178.30
50.72
106.04
335.06

-

(Stated at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)
Fuel
Fuel - In Transit
Stores & spares
Above inventories are pledged as security with the Lenders against borrowings.
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12

TRADE RECEIVABLES

(unsecured otherwise stated)
Unsecured, considered good
Credit Impaired
Less : Provision for doubtful Trade receivables
Total

As at
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018

425.70
27.04
452.74
(27.04)
425.70

-

Note :
(i)

The Company holds security deposit in respect of trade receivables - Refer Note No 23

(ii) Above trade receivables are pledged as security with the Lenders against borrowings.
(iii) There are no consumers who owe more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables.
(iv)	The average credit period for the Company’s receivables from its transmission and distribution (including street
light maintenance) business is in the range of 15 to 21 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables till the
due date. Thereafter, interest is charged in the range of 12% to 18% per annum and delayed payment charges at
the rate of 1.25% per month.							
(v)	In case of transmission business, regulator approved tariff is receivable from long-term transmission customers
(LTTCs) and Discoms that are highly rated companies or government parties. Counterparty credit risk with respect
to those receivables is very minimal.							
(vi)	The Company considers for impairment its receivables from customers in its Mumbai distribution business. The
risk of recovery in these businesses is reduced to the extent of security deposits already collected and held as
collaterals. Balance amount receivable over and above the deposit is assessed for expected credit loss allowances.
However, the Company has assessed that the concentrations of risk in these balance is not material considering
the high collection efficiency.
12.1 Trade Receivables

Age of receivables
Within the Credit Period
1-90 days past due
91-182 days past due
More than 182 days past due

Movement in the allowance for doubtful trade receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Provision made during the year
Balance at the end of the year

As at
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018

237.05
141.85
23.24
50.60
452.74

-

As at
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018

27.04
27.04

-

The concentration of credit risk is very limited due to the fact that the large customers are mainly government bodies /
departments and remaining customer base is large and widely dispersed and secured with security deposit.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - AT AMORTISED COST
(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2019

As at
31 March, 2018

77.28

0.14

- Fixed Deposits

2.45

-

Cash On Hand

2.61

-

9.06

-

91.40

0.14

Balances with banks
- In current accounts

Cheques / Drafts On Hand
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents as per Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of liabilities from Financing Activities

(` in Crores)
Particulars

As at Cash flows (net of financing fees
1 April, 2018
on long term borrowings)
Proceeds

Repayment

Non-cash
Transaction

As at
31 March, 2019

Non-current
Borrowings
(including Current
Maturities of Noncurrent Borrowings)

1,503.70

9,122.59

(1,757.00)

-

8,869.29

Current Borrowings
(Excluding Bank
Overdraft)

30.96

2,055.35

(1,100.70)

-

985.61

1,534.66

11,177.94

(2,857.70)

-

9,854.90

Total

Reconciliation of liabilities from Financing Activities
(` in Crores)
Particulars

As at Cash flows (net of financing fees
1 April, 2017
on long term borrowings)

Non-cash
Transaction

As at
31 March, 2018

Proceeds

Repayment

Non-current
Borrowings
(including Current
Maturities of Noncurrent Borrowings)

-

1,503.70

-

-

1,503.70

Current Borrowings
(Excluding Bank
Overdraft)

0.11

30.85

-

-

30.96

Total

0.11

1,534.55

-

-

1,534.66

14

BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - AT AMORTISED COST
(` in Crores)

Bank Deposits with Original Maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12
months (Towards Debt Service Reserve Account)

As at
31 March, 2019

As at
31 March, 2018

283.47

-

283.47

-
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SHARE CAPITAL

As at
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018

5,000.00
5,000.00

0.05
0.05

3,400.05
3,400.05

0.05
0.05

Authorised Share Capital
5,00,00,00,000 (50,000) equity shares of ` 10 each.
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Shares Capital
3,400,050,000 (50,000) fully paid up equity shares of ` 10 each.
a.

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity Shares

At the beginning of the Year
Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year
b.

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018
No. Shares
50,000
50,000

As at
31 March, 2019
No. Shares
50,000
3,40,00,00,000
3,40,00,50,000

Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares
is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,except in case of interim dividend which is recorded as a liability
on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation of the Company the holders
of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at 31 March, 2019
No. Shares
% held
Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid
Adani Transmission Limited and its
nominees*
Reliance Infrastructure Limited and It's
nominee

3,40,00,50,000

100%

-

-

-

-

50,000

100%

3,40,00,50,000

100%

50,000

100%

*Shares Pledged
No. of equity equity shares pledged to
Lenders (51%)
16

(` in Crores)
As at 31 March, 2018
No. Shares
% held

1,73,40,25,500

PERPETUAL EQUITY INSTRUMENT - SHAREHOLDER LOAN

Opening Balance
Add : Availed during the year
Add : Distribution accrued (Net of tax)
Closing Balance

As at
31 March, 2019
243.06
14.17
257.23

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018
-

During the year, the Company raised ` 243.06 Crores from the Parent Company, through issue of Perpetual Equity
Instrument (the “Instrument”). The Instrument is perpetual in nature with no maturity date and is repayable only at the
option of the Company. The distribution on the Instrument is at 11.00% with a reset provision after a period of every
5 (five) years. As the Instrument is perpetual in nature and ranked senior only to the Share Capital of the Company
and the Company does not have any redemption obligation, the Instrument is considered to be in the nature of equity.
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OTHER EQUITY

a.

Capital Reserve
As at
31 March, 2019
-

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018
-

Add : On Business Combination

230.78

-

Closing Balance

230.78

-

Opening Balance

Capital Reserve represents the gain arising on accounting of business combination, wherein on the acquisitiondate the net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed exceeded the consideration
amount paid.
b.

Contingency Reserve Fund
As at
31 March, 2019
-

Opening Balance
Acquired on Business Combination
Transfer from Retained Earnings
Closing Balance

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018

157.89

-

18.77

-

176.66

-

As per the provisions of MERC MYT Regulations read with Tariff orders passed by MERC, the Company being a
Distribution and Transmission Licensee,makes an appropriation to the Contingency Reserve Fund to meet with
certain exigencies,which has been invested in Bonds issued by Government of India and Mutual Funds.
c.

Retained Earnings
As at
31 March, 2019
(47.54)

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018
(0.05)

61.48

(47.49)

0.03

-

Transfer to Contingency Reserve Fund

(18.77)

-

Interest accrued on Perpetual Equity Instrument

(15.75)

-

(20.55)

(47.54)

386.89

(47.54)

Opening Balance
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income arising from remeasurement of
Defined Benefit Plans (net of tax)

Closing Balance
Retained Earnings are the profits of the Company earned till date
net of appropriations
Total
18

BORROWINGS

Particulars

Secured
Term Loans from Banks
Unsecured
Subordinate Debt from Parent Company
Total

(` in Crores)
Non-Current
Current
As at
As at
As at
As at
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
7,902.19

1,320.00

967.10

180.00

7,902.19

3.70
1,323.70

967.10

180.00

* Amount disclosed under the head “Other current financial liabilities” (Refer note 23)				
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Security, Rate of Interest and Repayment Terms
Non-current Borrowings
Term loan from Bank (s) is secured by way :
I

` 8,169.29 Crores (includes current maturities of ` 267.10 Crores and processing fees netted of ` 157.20 Crores)
(rate of interest @ 9.05% reset on yearly basis) from Banks is secured by way of : a

First pari-passu charge by way of Mortgage of 33 immoveable properties of the Company.

b	First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation over the movable assets, both present and future, of the Company.
c	First charge by way of assignment of all documents, permits, approvals, rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims,
insurance, demands, clearances etc. pertaining to the business of the Company by way of Hypothecation
Deed / Indenture of Mortgage, both present and future.
d	First pari-passu charge on all book debts, operating cash flows, receivables (excluding Regulatory Assets
and the bank accounts where such Regulatory Assets are deposited), commissions or revenues whatsoever
arising both present and future of the Company.
e	First pari-passu charge on all present and future bank accounts including the Trust and Retention accounts
(excluding the Escrow bank account wherein the Regulatory Assets recovered are deposited).
f

First charge by way of assignment of transmission and distribution license of the Company.

g

Pledge over 51% of the entire paid up share capital held by the Parent Company; and

h	Negative Lien Undertaking (by way of NDU) in respect of the 90 freehold, 115 leasehold immoveable
properties and 2 Right of way properties,including future immoveable properties.
Security as stipulated above shall be created in favour of the Security Trustee for the benefit of lenders.
The Future annual repayment obligations on principal amount for the above term loan borrowings are as under:(` in Crores)
Particulars
Total
4 Installments during 2019-20
272.18
4 Installments during 2020-21
370.36
4 Installments during 2021-22
412.86
4 Installments during 2022-23
428.89
4 Installments during 2023-24
467.50
4 Installments during 2024-25
510.00
4 Installments during 2025-26
552.50
4 Installments during 2026-27
595.00
4 Installments during 2027-28
637.50
4 Installments during 2028-29
680.00
4 Installments during 2029-30
722.50
4 Installments during 2030-31
765.00
4 Installments during 2031-32
765.00
4 Installments during 2032-33
807.50
2 Installments during 2033-34
339.70
Total (gross)
8,326.49
Less : Impact of recognition of borrowings at amortised cost using effective interest method
157.20
Total (net)
8,169.29
II
` 700 Crores (rate of interest in the range of 9.20% to 9.75% reset on monthly basis) (including current maturities
of ` 700 Crores) from Banks against Regulatory Assets to be recovered, is secured by way of : a	First ranking pari-passu charge on identified Approved Regulatory Asset / Revenue Gap as approved
by Maharashtra State Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC) for 2019-20 as per MYT order dated
12 September, 2018
b
III

70

First ranking pari-passu charge on Collection accounts opened with designated Banks.

` 1,500 Crores outstanding as at 31 March, 2018 (rate of interest @ 9.00% reset on annualy basis) (including current
maturities of ` 180 Crores) from Bank, was secured by way of exclusive charge on DTPS (excluding land) and corporate
guarantee of R-infra.
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TRADE PAYABLES
(` in Crores)

Particulars

Non-Current

Current

As at
As at
As at
As at
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
(A) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises; and
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises.

-

-

0.28

-

21.80

-

1,170.99

-

21.80

-

1,171.27

-

This information as required to be disclosed under Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes
dues (including interest on outstanding dues), which are outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date. The above
information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2019

As at
31 March, 2018

(a) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of
each accounting year

0.28

-

(b) Interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at
the end of each accounting year

0.00

-

-

-

(d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

0.18

-

(e) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year; and

0.18

-

0.18

-

(c) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,

(f)

20

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20060.
PROVISIONS

(` in Crores)
Non-Current

Current

As at
As at
As at
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2019

As at
31 March, 2018

Provision for Gratuity

110.34

30.91

Provision for Compensated absences

328.20

-

29.30

-

438.54

-

60.21

-
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OTHER LIABILITIES
(` in Crores)
Non-Current
Current
As at
As at
As at
As at
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018

Deferred Revenue - Service Line
Contributions from Consumers
Statutory dues payable
Advances From Customer
Other Payables

22

224.83

-

-

-

224.83

-

170.38
65.26
2.60
238.24

1.88
1.88

BORROWINGS

As at
31 March, 2019
Secured loans from banks
Short Term Loan against Regulatory Assets
Buyers credit
Working capital short term loan
Working capital loans repayable on demand
Unsecured loans
Inter Corporate Deposit from Parent Company
Other Short term loan payable on demand

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018

78.99
56.88
115.60
273.89

-

460.25
985.61

30.96
30.96

-

Security and Rate of Interest
(i)

For Short Term Loan, Buyers Credit and Working capital loans - Please Refer No 18 (I)

(ii) For Short Term Loan against Regulatory Assets - Please Refer No 18 (II)
The rate of interest for secured loans from banks ranges from 3.04% to 9.20% and rate of interest on unsecured
loans is 11.00%.
23

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Payable towards purchase of PPE
Security Deposit from Consumers
Security Deposit from Customers / Vendors
Other Financial Liabilities

24

CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

Current Tax Liabilities

72

(` in Crores)
Non-Current
Current
As at
As at
As at
As at
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
967.10
180.00
47.11
11.09
92.88
431.87
3.98
60.87
1,603.81
191.09
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Income from Sale of Power and Transmission Charges
Income from Sale of Power and Transmission Charges (Net)
(Less)/Add: Income to be adjusted in future tariff determination (Net)
Sub Total (a)
b) Other Operating Income
Insurance Claim Received
Income in respect of Services rendered
Sale of Coal Rejects / Fly Ash
Street Light Maintenence Charges
Amortisation of Service Line Contribution
Miscellaneous Revenue
Sub Total (b)
c) Sale of Traded Goods
Sale of Traded Goods
Sub Total (c)
Total

For the year ended
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018

7,325.79
13.73
7,339.52

-

2.00
6.88
9.89
107.56
7.42
10.93
144.68

-

9.73
9.73
7,493.93

-

a)

Details of Revenue from Contract with Customers
Particulars
Total Revenue from Contract with Customers
Street Light Maintenence Charges
Sale of Traded Goods
Add: Cash Discount/Rebates etc
Total Revenue as per Contracted Price

For the year ended
31 March, 2019
7,339.52
107.56
9.73
29.04
7,485.85

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018
-

-

Transaction Price - Remaining Performance Obligation
The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be
recognised as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise
these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the
remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts as the revenue recognised corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed to date.
There are no aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as of
31 March, 2019, other than those meeting the exclusion criteria mentioned above.
Revenue is disaggregated by type and nature of product or services.
Contract Balances
For the year ended
31 March, 2019
Contract Assets
Recoverable from Consumers
Non-current
Current
Total Contract Assets
Contract liabilities
Liabilities towards Consumers

4.78 - 4.78

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018

-
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For the year ended
31 March, 2019
-

Non-current
Current
Total Contract Liabilities
Receivables
Trade Receivables (Gross)
Unbilled Revenue for passage of time
(Less): Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Net Receivables

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018
-

452.74
610.45
(27.04)
1,036.15

-

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract
liability is the entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received
consideration from the customer in advance. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights
become unconditional and contract liabilities are recognised as revenue as and when the performance obligation is
satisfied.
Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows :

For the year ended
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018

-

-

(8.95)

-

B

13.73
4.78

-

(A+B)

4.78
4.78

-

For the year ended
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018

Opening Balance
Recoverable from consumers
Liabilities towards consumers
A
Income to be adjusted in future tariff determination in respect of earlier
year (Net)
Income to be adjusted in future tariff determination (Net)
Revenue recognised during the year
Closing Balance
Recoverable from consumers
Liabilities towards consumers

26

a)

b)

c)

74

OTHER INCOME

Interest Income
On Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
Bank Deposits
Overdue Trade Receivables
On non current investment - Contingency Reserve Fund
Other interest
Sub Total (a)
Gain/(Loss) on Investments
Gain On Sale / Fair Value Of Current Investments Measured at FVTPL
Gain On Sale / Fair Value Of Current Investments Measured at FVTPL
- Contingency Reserve Fund
Sub Total (b)
Other Non-operating Income
Gain on Extinguishment of Financial Labilities
Bad Debts Recovery
Annual Report 2018-19

14.65
16.68
9.61
3.47
44.41

-

2.01

-

2.47

-

4.48

-

55.39
4.99

-
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Sale of Scrap
Rental Income
Delayed Payment Charges
Foreign Exchange Gain (net)
Miscellaneous Income
Sub Total (c)
Total
27

For the year ended
31 March, 2019
3.68
0.78
28.78
6.01
0.76
100.39
149.28

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018
-

For the year ended
31 March, 2019
670.31
73.26
50.67
8.22
37.07
95.29
934.82
(66.94)
867.88

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018
-

For the year ended
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018

881.79
53.70
31.16

47.28
-

38.50
5.16
1,010.31
(11.48)
998.83

0.08
47.36
47.36

2.99
1,001.82

47.36

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (REFER NOTE 38)

Salaries,Wages & Bonus
Contribution To Gratuity
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Contribution to Superannuation Fund
Compensated absences
Staff Welfare Expenses
Less : Staff Cost Capitalised
Total
28

FINANCE COSTS

a)

Interest Expense
Borrowings - Amortised Cost
Rupee Term Loans
Working Capital Loans
Interest on Intercorporate Deposit - Parent Company
Others
Security Deposits From Consumers at amortised cost
Interest - Others
Less : Interest Cost Capitalised

b)

Other Borrowing Costs
Other Finance Cost

Total
Note :

The weighted average capitalisation rate on the Company’s general borrowings is 9.0 % (31st March 2018 : Nil) per
annum.
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OTHER EXPENSES

Consumption Of Stores & Spares
Repairs & Maintenance
- Plant & Machinery
- Buildings
- Others
Rental of Land,Building,Plant & Machinery Etc
Rates and Taxes
Legal & Professional Expenses
Directors' Sitting Fees
Bank Charges
Payment to Auditors (Refer note (i) below)
Communication Expenses
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses
Insurance Expenses
License fees
Security Charges
Seminar & Training Expenses
Software Expenses
Share Issue Expenses
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Provision for Doubtful Deposits
Bill Print/Collection/ Distribution
Call Center Expenses
(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Assets (net)
Donations
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note (ii) below)
Electricity Expenses
Printing & Stationery
Other Miscellaneous Expenses
Advertisement & Publicity
Water charges
Total
(i)

For the year ended
31 March, 2019
58.58
279.46
250.53
14.91
14.02
51.82
17.01
123.99
0.01
10.41
1.44
8.23
16.47
19.05
1.93
32.87
0.88
1.89
2.91
23.53
1.05
9.22
5.54
17.28
0.30
0.97
0.25
3.33
18.63
4.42
3.18
714.65

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018
0.01
0.12
0.13

Payment to auditors (inclusive of GST)

As auditor:
Statutory Audit Fees
Other Services

For the year ended
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018

1.42
0.02
1.44

-

For the year ended
31 March, 2019
-

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018
-

0.97

-

(ii) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Act
Amount spent during the year
(a) Construction, Acquisition of asset
(b) On purpose other than (a) above
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30
1

TAX EXPENSES
Income Taxes recognised in the statement of profit & loss
For the year ended
31 March, 2019
41.98
65.68
107.66

Current Income Tax (MAT)
Deferred Tax

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018
-

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Income tax using the company's domestic tax rate
Tax Effect of :
- Non deductible Expenses
- Interest on Perpetual Equity Instrument
- MAT credit not recognised
- Tax on other Items
- Tax losses for which no deferred income tax was recognised
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended
31 March, 2019
169.14
59.10

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018
(47.49)
(16.44)

1.46
(5.50)
41.98
10.62
107.66

16.44
-

Notes
(a) The tax rate used for the years 2018-19 and 2017-18 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 34.944% and
34.608% respectively payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law
(b) The rate used for calculation of Deferred tax is 34.944% for 2018-19 and 2017-18, being statutory enacted rate at
respective Balance Sheet date.
2

Deferred Tax
For the year ended
31 March, 2019
101.32
101.32

Deferred tax Assets
Deferred tax Liabilities
Net Deferred Tax Assets

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March, 2018
-

2018-19
Opening Balance

Deferred Tax Assets in relation to
Allowance for Doubtful Debts,
Deposits and Advances
Provisions for employee benefits and others
Unabsorbed Depreciation
Deferred Tax liabilities in relation to
Property, Plant & Equipment
Deferred Tax Asset (Net)

-

Arising on
Business
Combination

Recognised in
Profit & Loss

(` in Crores)
Closing Balance

-

8.59

8.59

167.00
167.00

19.74
322.34
350.67

186.74
322.34
517.67

167.00

416.35
416.35
(65.68)

416.35
416.35
101.32

As at 31 March, 2019, MAT Credit not recognised ` 41.98 Crores and Tax Losses carried forward is ` 922.47 Crores.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

(A) Before net Movement in Regulatory Deferral Balance
Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders
Add/(Less): Net Movement in Regulatory Deferral Balance
Income tax on Regulatory Income / (expense)
Regulatory Income / (expense) (net of tax)
Net Profit / (Net Loss) excluding regulatory Income
Less Distribution on Perpetual Equity Instrument
Net Profit / (Net Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders
excluding Regulatory income/(expense)
Number of Weighted Average Equity Shares, No outstanding
during the year for basic / diluted EPS
Nominal Value of Equity Shares
Basic / Diluted Earnings per Share before net Movement in
Regulatory Deferral Balance
(B) After net Movement in Regulatory Deferral Balance
Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders
Less Distribution on Perpetual Equity Instrument
Net Profit / (Net Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders
including Regulatory income/(expense)
Number of Weighted Average Equity Shares, No
outstanding during the year for basic EPS
Nominal Value of Equity Shares
Basic / Diluted Earnings per Share after net Movement in
Regulatory Deferral Balance
32
1

For the year ended
31 March 2019

(` in Crores)
For the year ended
31 March 2018

61.48
157.59
(33.96)
123.63
(62.15)
(15.75)

(47.49)
(47.49)
-

(77.90)

(47.49)

2,08,66,25,342

50,000

`

10.00

10.00

`

(0.37)

(9,498.00)

61.48
(15.75)

(47.49)
-

45.73

(47.49)

2,08,66,25,342

50,000

`

10.00

10.00

`

0.22

(9,498.00)

No

No

BUSINESS COMBINATION
Consequent to a scheme of arrangement approved by the High Court of Judicature at Bombay, and other regulatory
approvals obtained in this regard, the Mumbai Power business of Reliance Infrastructure Limited (RINFRA) consisting
of Generation, Transmission and Distribution assets and liabilities has been demerged and transferred into the
Company with an appointed date of 1 April, 2018 and the name of the company was changed to Adani Electricity
Mumbai Limited. The scheme of arrangement as approved, required that the assets and liabilities as at the appointed
date be accounted for at Fair Values in the books of the Company upon transfer on demerger. 		
Pursuant to the share purchase agreement (Including Supplementary Agreements) entered into between RINFRA,
Adani Transmission Limited (ATL) and the Company, ATL acquired 100% equity share capital of the Company on 29
August, 2018 for a cash consideration of ` 12,350.00 Crores. The said acquisition has been accounted as a business
acquisition in terms of Ind AS 103 – Business Combinations.
On final determination of the fair values, the Company has accounted for assets and liabilities at fair values which has
resulted in the Company acquiring assets including property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other current
/ non-current assets at a Fair Value of ` 16,824.56 Crores along with borrowings, and other current / non-current
liabilities at a Fair Value of ` 4,243.78 Crores. The purchase price consideration aggregating to ` 12,350.00 Crores was
discharged by availment of borrowings amounting to ` 8,950.00 Crores and balance of ` 3,400.00 Crores in cash to
RINFRA resulting in Capital Reserve on acquisition amounting to ` 230.78 Crores.
The above acquisition was done by the Adani Group, with an intention to enter the power distribution business and
exploit the synergies with the Group’s other related infrastructure business.
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2

Fair Value of assets acquired and liabilities recognised w.e.f. appointed date i.e. 1 April, 2018.
(` in Crores)
Amount

ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
11,817.41
Capital Work-In-Progress
189.47
Intangible Assets (including transmission license)
992.97
Financial Assets
(i) Investments
116.38
(ii) Loans
26.43
(iii) Other Financial Assets
52.98
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
167.00
Other Non-current Assets
11.02
Current Assets
Inventories
314.58
Financial Assets
(i) Investments
22.98
(ii) Trade Receivables
424.64
(iii) Loans
2.87
(iv) Other Financial Assets
1,452.11
Other Current Assets
88.66
Regulatory Deferral Account - Assets
1,145.06
Total Assets
16,824.56
LIABILITIES
Reservers
Contingency Reserve
157.89
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables
19.17
Other Non Current Liabilities
210.73
Provisions
449.72
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables
1,256.16
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities
1,572.55
Other Current Liabilities
306.00
Regulatory Deferral Account - Liabilities
271.56
Total Liabilities
4,243.78
Net identifiable assets acquired
12,580.78
Consideration paid in Cash (Net of Nil Cash and cash equivalent balance acquired)
3,400.00
Consideration discharged by availment of borrowings
8,950.00
Total Consideration transferred
12,350.00
Capital reserve arising on acquisition directly recognised in Equity
230.78
Acquisition related cost in respect of the above business combination have been born by the Parent Company.
3

The fair value of the trade receivables expected to collected amounts to ` 424.64 Crores. The gross amount of
trade receivables is ` 502.14 Crores. However, fair value of the trade receivables is not credit impaired and it is
expected that the full contractual amounts can be collected.

4

The fair value of PPE and Intangible assets has been determined based on valuations done by Government
approved valuer / professional valuation firm.
(i)

The critical estimates / judgements involved in fair value measurements in respect of PPE :
•

Land prices, Floor Space Index potential, Construction & other associated costs.

•

Inflation indices, Discount for technical and functional obsolescence.

•

Re-instatement costs.
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(ii) T
 he critical estimates / judgements involved in fair value measurements in respect of Intangible Assets - Transmission
& Distribution License are based on :

33

•

Future capital expenditure

•

Discount rate and Perpetuity growth rate

•

Valuation method used

As stated in Note 32 above, during the year, the Company has acquired the Mumbai Power Business consisting of
generation, transmission and distribution business (the“ Business”) of Reliance Infrastructure Limited (“RINFRA”)
pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangement (the “Scheme”) between the Company, Adani Transmission Limited –
Holding Company (“ATL”) and RINFRA, which was approved by the Honourable High Court of Mumbai with an
appointed date of 1 April, 2018, and other regulatory approvals. Consequent to receipt of all regulatory/ lenders
approvals which were received in August 2018, ATL / the Company obtained control of the said Business from
RINFRA on 29 August, 2018, being the date of acquisition / control. In terms of the Scheme approved as above,
the assets and liabilities of the acquired Business are required to be accounted for at their respective fair values
as of the appointed date of 1 April, 2018, which is contrary to the accounting treatment prescribed under IND AS
103 – Business Combinations, which requires the assets and liabilities of the acquired business to be accounted
for at their respective fair values as on the date of acquisition / control on 29 August, 2018.
The impact of the above accounting treatment on the fair values of Assets and Liabilities as at the acquisition
date would have resulted in a lower fair value of Rs 22.17 Crores as at the acquisition date.
The Statutory Auditors have commented on the above by way of an Emphasis of Matter in the Auditors report.

34 In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 36 - “Impairment of Assets”, Intangible Asset with indefinite
useful life being Transmission License has been tested for impairment as at 31 March, 2019 applying fair value
use approach, wherein the fair value of the transmission license has been determined using Multiple Excess
Earning Method (MEEM).
In deriving the fair value, a discount rate (post tax) of 9.25% per annum has been used. In arriving at the fair
value, financial projections have been developed for 17 years and thereafter in perpetuity considering a growth
rate of 3.5% per annum.
Based on the results of the Intangible Asset impairment test, the estimated recoverable amount (fair value Level 3) of the Transmission License was higher than its carrying amount, hence impairment provision recorded
during the current year is ` Nil (31st March 2018 - ` Nil crore). Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount to exceed the fair value of the Transmission License.
The key assumptions used in fair value calculations –MEEM of the transmission license are as follows:(i) Discount Rate: 9.25% Post-Tax Discount rate has been derived based on current cost of borrowing and equity
rate of return in line with the current market expectations
(ii) Capitalisation: Capitalisation is estimated based on management projections as regards capex in respect
future transmission schemes.
35

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(A) Contingent liabilities :

Claims against the Company not probable and hence not
acknowledged as debts consists of : (i) Demand disputed by the Company relating to Service tax on
street light maintainence, wheeling charges and cross subsidy
surcharges - Refer note 3
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(ii) Take or Pay dispute with The Tata Power Company Limited
(TPCL) - Refer note 3 & 4
(iii) Claims raised by the Government authorities towards unearned
income arising on alleged transfer of certain land parcels - Refer
note 3
(iv) Demand towards fixed charges payable in respect of power
drawn from the state pool
(v) Way Leave fees claims disputed by the Company relating to
rates charged - Refer note 3
(vi) Property related disputes - Refer note 3
(vii) Other claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts.
(viii) Claims raised by Vidharbha Industries Power Limited (VIPL) in
respect of increase in fuel cost upto the financial year ended 31
March 2019 - Refer Note 3
(ix) Shortfall in meeting Renewable Purchase Obligation for the
Financial Year ended 31 March, 2017, 2018 and 2019
@ Amount not determinable

As at
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018

323.87
127.65

-

124.60

-

20.60

-

2.59
2.12

-

1,381.28

-

@

-

2,336.26

-

Notes:
1	Amounts in respect of employee related claims/disputes, consumer related litigation, regulatory matters is
not ascertainable.					
2	Future cash flows in respect of above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions
pending at various forums/authorities.					
3	In terms of the Share Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company, ATL with RINFRA, in the event the
above matters are decided against the Company and are not recoverable from the consumers, the same
would be recovered from RINFRA.					
4	Pursuant to the order passed by MERC dated 12 December, 2007, in case No.7 of 2002, TPCL has claimed an
amount of ` 323.87 Crore towards the following:					
a.	Difference in the energy charge for energy supplied by TPCL at 220 kV interconnection for the period March
2001 to May 2004 along with interest at 24% per annum up to 31 December, 2007, and
b. 	Minimum off-take charges for energy for the years 1998-99 to 1999-2000 along with interest at 24% per
annum up to 31 December, 2007.
		In an appeal filed by the Company, ATE held that the amount in the matter (a) above is payable by the Company
along with interest at State Bank of India prime lending rate for short term borrowings.The matter (b) was
remanded to MERC for redetermination. The Company has filed an appeal against the said order before the
Supreme Court, which while admitting the appeal, has by way of interim order restrained TPC from taking any
coercive action in respect of the matter stated in (a) above and TPCL has also filed an appeal against the said
order.The Company has complied with the interim order directions of depositing ` 25 Crore with the Registrar of
Supreme Court which has been withdrawn by TPCL and has provided a Bank Guarantee of ` 9.98 Crore.
5	The above Contingent Liabilities to the extent pertaining to Regulated Business, on unfavourable outcome
are recoverable from consumers subject to MERC approval.
The Company, in respect of the above mentioned Contingent Liabilities has assessed that it is only possible but
not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required.
(B) Capital Commitments :

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for

As at
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018

414.13

-

414.13
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36
(i)

OPERATING LEASE
The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases of premises for office premises,
residential premises, warehouses and cash collection centres for a period of eleven months to five years. These leasing
arrangements are usually renewable on mutually agreed terms and are generally not non-cancellable. Under these
arrangements, generally refundable interest free deposits have been given. Lease payments in respect of premises
for office premises, residential premises, warehouses and cash collection centers amounting ` 23.27 crore (31 March,
2017: ` Nil) are included under ‘Rental of Land, Building,Plant & Machinery Etc’ in Note 29.
The future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable leases is as follows : As at
31 March, 2019
8.45
6.04
14.49

Less than 1 year
Between 1 to 5 years
More than 5 years
Total

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018
-

The Company has not entered into any material financial lease.
Material Leasing arrangements with respect to land range between 25 years to 99 years generally wherein the
entire lease rent has been paid in advance.
(ii)	The Company has a 25 year long term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Vidharbha Industries Power Limited
(VIPL), wherein the Company has committed to purchase the entire output generated from VIPL’s generating
station located at Butibori. In terms of the PPA, the Company, subject to a minimum guaranteed plant availability
(determined on a yearly basis), is liable to pay (subject to MERC approval) a fixed monthly capacity charge and a
variable charge towards the cost of fuel.
	The Company on assessment of the above arrangement has concluded, that the payment towards fixed monthly
capacity charge is contingent on plant availability which is the responsibility of VIPL, and accordingly such lease
has been classified as operating lease.
	During the current year a sum of ` 488.40 Crores have been paid under the above arrangement and accounted
under Cost of Power Purchased.
37

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

As per the Ind AS 24, disclosure of transactions with related parties, are given below:
Name of related parties & description of relationship
(A) Ultimate Holding Entity
(B) Holding Company
(C) Key Management Personnel:
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S. B. Adani Family Trust (SBAFT) (w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Adani Transmission Limited - (w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited - (upto 28.08.2018)
Shri Kandarp Patel, Managing Director & CEO - (w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Shri Rakesh Tiwary, Chief Financial Officer -(w.e.f 01.11.2018)
Shri Abhijit Banerjee, Company Secretary-(w.e.f 29.08.2018) &
Director - (upto 28.08.2018)
Shri Anil Sardana, Director - (w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Shri Sagar Adani , Director - (w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Shri K Jairaj, Independent Director - (w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Shri Divyesh Dalal, Director - (upto 28.08.2018)
Shri Prakash Khedekar, Director - (upto 28.08.2018)
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(D) Enterprises over which (A) or (B) or (C) above have significant influence :
(where transactions have taken place during the year and previous year / balance outstanding)
Adani Power Limited-(w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Adani Enterprises Limited-(w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Adani Finserve Private Limited-(w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Karnavati Aviation Private Limited-(w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Adani Power (Mundra) Limited-(w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Adani Green Energy Limited-(w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Mundra Solar Pv Limited-(w.e.f 29.08.2018)
Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Reliance General Insurance Company Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Reliance Innoventures Private Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Reliance Communication Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Reliance Infratel Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Reliance General Insurance Company Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Reliance Health Insurance Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Reliance Home Finance Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Reliance Nippon Life Asset Management Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Dhursur Solar Power Private Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Reliance Power Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Vidarbha Industries Power Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Sasan Power Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
DA Toll Road Private Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Reliance Commercial Finance Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Sasan Power Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
(E) Employee Benefits Funds :
AEML Gratuity Fund - (w.e.f. 01.09.2018)
AEML Superannuation Fund - (w.e.f. 01.09.2018)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited Gratuity Fund - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited Superannuation Fund - (Upto 28.08.2018)
Provident Fund Of Reliance Infrastructure Limited - (Upto 28.08.2018)
(` in Crores)
Nature of Transaction

Name of Related Party

Perpetual Equity Instrument
availed

Adani Transmission Limited

243.06

-

Interest Accrued on Perpetual
Equity Instrument

Adani Transmission Limited

15.75

-

Insurance Premium paid

Reliance General Insurance
Company Limited

1.23

-

Reimbursement of Expenses

Adani Transmission Limited

142.24

-

Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD)
Received

Adani Transmission Limited

710.25

-

77.35

30.85

Reliance Infrastructure Limited
Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) Repaid Adani Transmission Limited

For the year ended
31 March, 2019

For the year ended
31 March, 2018

250.00

-

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

108.31

-

Advance paid towards purchase of
business

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

-

1,500.00

Consideration paid towards
purchase of business (Net of
Advance adjusted)

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

10,850.00
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(` in Crores)
Nature of Transaction

Name of Related Party

Amount received towards regulatory
Reliance Infrastructure Limited
liability

For the year ended
31 March, 2019

For the year ended
31 March, 2018

271.56

Share application money received

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

3,400.00

-

Interest on ICD

Adani Transmission Limited

31.16

-

Contribution to Employee Benefits

AEML Gratuity Fund

5.00

AEML Superannuation Fund

4.75

Provident Fund Of Reliance
Infrastructure Limited

15.52

Purchase of Services

Reliance Infrastructure Limited
Superannuation Fund

3.47

Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

4.74

-

Adani Finserve Private Limited

8.26

-

Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure
Limited

0.01

-

29.48

-

71.83

-

Adani Transmission Limited
Adani Enterprises Limited
Purchase of PPE

Adani Power Limited

0.33

-

Employee advance transferred

Adani Enterprises Limited

0.01

-

Employees benefits Receivable

Adani Power (Mundra ) Limited

0.44

-

Adani Green Energy Limited

0.16

-

Mundra Solar Pv Limited

0.09

Subordinate debt received

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

-

3.7

Subordinate debt repaid

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

3.7

-

79.97

-

49.40

-

34.75

-

Purchase of Power (net of discount) Adani Enterprises Limited
(excluding banking transactions)
Dhursur Solar Power Private
Limited
Reliance Innoventures Private
Limited
Reliance Power Limited

26.33

-

400.74

-

DA Toll Road Private Limited

0.00

-

Reliance Commercial Finance
Limited

0.00

-

Reliance General Insurance
Company Limited

0.00

-

Reliance Health Insurance Limited

0.00

-

Reliance Home Finance Limited

0.00

-

Reliance Nippon Life Asset
Management Limited

0.02

-

Sasan Power Limited

0.00

-

Vidarbha Industries Power Limited
Rent Received

Reliance Infratel Limited
Remuneration paid
Sitting Fees
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-
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-
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(` in Crores)
Closing Balance

Name of Related Party

Balance Payable

Adani Enterprises Limited
(excluding banking transactions)

Balance Receivable

As at
31 March, 2018

44.29

-

Adani Power Limited

0.33

-

Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

4.66

-

Adani Power (Mundra ) Limited

0.44

-

Adani Green Energy Limited

0.16

-

0.09

-

Mundra Solar Pv Limited
ICD payable

As at
31 March, 2019

Adani Transmission Limited
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

460.25

-

-

30.96

0.66

-

Contribution to Employee Benefits
Payable

AEML Superannuation Fund

Interest accrued but not due on ICD

Adani Transmission Limited

20.45

-

Perpetual Equity Instrument (incl interest) Adani Transmission Limited

257.23

-

Advance paid towards purchase of
business

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

-

1,500.00

Subordinate debt receivable

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

-

3.70

Note:
1	The above disclosure does not include transactions with / as public utility services viz, electricity,
telecommunications etc in the normal course of business.
2

All transactions with related parties have been done at arms length.

3	Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits
recognised as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’ in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are
lump sum amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not included above.
38
1

DISCLOSURE UNDER IND AS 19 “EMPLOYEE BENEFITS” :
Defined Contribution Plan
(i)

Provident fund

(ii) Superannuation fund
(iii) State defined contribution plans
- Employer’s contribution to Employees’ state insurance
- Employers’ Contribution to Employees’ Pension Scheme 1995
The provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by the Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner and the superannuation fund is administered by the trustees of the AEML Superannuation Scheme.
Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement
benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The Company has no obligation other than the contribution to the fund.
The Company has recognised the following amounts as expense in the financial statements for the year:
(` in Crores)
Particulars

31 March, 2019

31 March, 2018

36.87

-

Contribution to Employees Superannuation Fund

8.22

-

Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme

7.40

-

Contribution to Employees State Insurance

0.00

-

Contribution to Provident Fund
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2

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity
The Company operates a funded gratuity plan in the form of a Trust, governed by Trustees appointed by the
Company and administered by Life Insurance corporation. Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to
fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
or Company scheme whichever is beneficial. The same is payable at the time of separation from the Company or
retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefits vest after five years of continuous service.
Particulars

Starting Period
Date of Reporting
Principal Assumptions in actuarial valuation
Expected Return On Plan Assets
Rate of Discounting
Rate of Salary Increase
Rate of Employee Turnover
Mortality Rate During Employment

Gratuity for the
year ended
31 March, 2019
01-Apr-18
31-Mar-19
7.54%
7.54%
9.75%
1.00%
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08)

(` in Crores)
Gratuity for the
year ended
31 March, 2018
01-Apr-17
31-Mar-18
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

Change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

Present value of Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year
Liability Acquired on Business Acquisition
Interest Cost
Current Service Cost
Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer
Actuarial (Gain) / Losses on Obligation-Due to Experience
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year

31 March, 2019
547.63
43.15
30.11
(23.89)
(0.27)
596.73

(` in Crores)
31 March, 2018
-

31 March, 2019
450.71
5.01
(0.24)
455.48

(` in Crores)
31 March, 2018
-

596.73
455.48
(141.25)
(141.25 )

-

30.91
110.34

-

30.11
43.15
73.26

-

Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Asset at the beginning of the year
Planned Asset Acquired on Business Acquisition
Contribution by the Employer
Return on Plan Assets Excluding Interest Income
Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of the year
Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
Funded Status (Deficit)
Net (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Provisions
Current
Non-Current
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost
Net Interest Cost
Expenses Recognised
Expenses Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
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Actuarial Losses on Obligation for the year
Return on Plan Assets Excluding Interest Income
Net Expenses for the year recognised in OCI
Major Categories of plan assets
Government Securities
Debt Instruments
Equity Instruments
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Total
Expected Contribution for next financial year
Expected Maturity Analysis of undiscounted defined Benefit
Obligation is as follows
Within one year
Between 2 to 5 years
Between 6 to 10 years
Beyond 10 years
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
Sensitivity Analysis
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions
Assumptions – Discount Rate
Sensitivity Level
Impact on defined benefit obligation –in % increase
Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores
Impact on defined benefit obligation –in % decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores
Assumptions – Future Salary Increase
Sensitivity Level
Impact on defined benefit obligation –in % increase
Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores
Impact on defined benefit obligation –in % decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores
Assumptions – Employee Turnover
Sensitivity Level
Impact on defined benefit obligation –in % increase
Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores
Impact on defined benefit obligation –in % decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores

31 March, 2019
(0.27)
0.24
(0.03)

(` in Crores)
31 March, 2018
-

68.45%
22.71%
3.92%
4.92%
100.00%
Not Determinable

-

51.68
126.43
291.13
846.67
10.00

-

596.73

-

1%
(8.04%)
(47.98)
9.22%
55.01

-

1%
8.86%
52.85
(7.90%)
(47.15)

-

1%
(1.32%)
(7.87)
1.46%
8.69

-

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of
the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance
sheet.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
prior period.
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3

Risk exposure:
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are
detailed below:

Asset volatility:
The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to government bond yield. If plan assets
underperform this yield, it will result in deficit. These are subject to interest rate risk. To offset the risk, the plan
assets have been deployed in high grade insurer managed funds.

Inflation rate risk:
Higher than expected increase in salary and medical cost will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk:
This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal,
disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligations is not straight
forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criterion.
39

REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT

Regulatory Deferral Account - Liability
Regulatory Liabilities
Regulatory Deferral Account - Assets
Regulatory Assets
Net Regulatory Assets/(Liabilities)

As at
31 March, 2019

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018

271.56

-

1,105.59
834.03

-

Rate Regulated Activities
1

 s per the Ind AS-114 ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts’, the business of electricity distribution is a Rate Regulated
A
activity wherein Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC), the regulator determines Tariff to be
charged from consumers based on prevailing regulations in place.

2	MERC Multi Year Tariff Regulations, 2015 (MYT Regulations), is applicable for the period beginning from
1 April, 2016 to 31 March, 2021. These regulations require MERC to determine tariff in a manner wherein the
Company can recover its fixed and variable costs including assured rate of return on approved equity base, from
its consumers. The Company determines the Revenue, Regulatory Assets and Liabilities as per the terms and
conditions specified in MYT Regulations.
3	Reconciliation of Regulatory Assets/Liabilities of distribution business as per Rate Regulated Activities is as follows:
(` in Crores)
Particulars
A

Opening Regulatory Assets (Net)

As at
31 March, 2019

As at
31 March, 2018

-

-

873.50

-

Add:
B

Acquired on Business Combination (Net)

C

Income recoverable/(reversible) from future tariff / Revenue Gap for the year
1

For Current Year

157.59

-

2

For Earlier Year

764.50

-

922.09

-

961.56

-

Total a ( 1 + 2 )
Less:
D

Recovered / (refunded) during the year

E

Net Movement during the year ( C - D )

(39.47)

-

F

Closing Balance ( A - E)

834.03

-
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1

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS.
Fair Values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amount and fair value of the financial instruments:
Particulars

Financial Assets
Investment
- Mutual Funds
- Government Securities
Trade Receivables
Loans Given
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Balances with Bank
Other Financial Assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Including Interest
accrued)
Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

31 March, 2019
FVTPL
Amortized Fair Value
Cost

(` in Crores)
31 March, 2018
FVTPL
Amortized
Fair Value
Cost

43.55
43.55

120.92
425.70
49.69
91.40
283.47
1,154.12
2,125.30

43.55
120.42
425.70
49.69
91.40
283.47
1,154.12
2,168.35

-

0.14
0.14

0.14
0.14

-

9,902.01

9,902.01

-

1,545.75

1,545.75

-

1,193.07
589.60
11,684.68

1,193.07
589.60
11,684.68

-

1,545.75

1,545.75

Note : There are no Financial Assets / Liabilities which are measured at FVTOCI
The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other balances with bank, trade
receivables, loans, trade payables, other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values.
Fair value of the Govt. securities,mutual funds are based on the price quotations near the reporting date.
The fair value of loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as other non-current financial liabilities
is estimated by discounting future cash flow using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities.
2	The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are
either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels
Level 1 :
Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 : 					
Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable.
Level 3 : 					
Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
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(` in Crores)
Particulars

Fair Value Hierarchy as at 31 March, 2019
Date of
Valuation

Quoted
prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)

Total

31 March, 2019

-

43.55

-

43.55

31 March, 2019

120.92

-

-

120.92

120.92

43.55

-

164.47

9,902.01

-

9,902.01

Asset measured at Fair Value
FVTPL financial investments - Mutual Funds
Asset for which Fair Value are disclosed
Amortised Cost financial investments:
- Government Securities
Total
Liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed
Floating rate borrowings at amortised cost

31 March, 2019

Total

-

9,902.01

-

9,902.01
(` in Crores)

Particulars

Fair Value Hierarchy as at 31 March, 2018
Date of
Valuation

Quoted
prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)

Total

31 March, 2018

-

-

-

-

31 March, 2018

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Asset measured at Fair Value
FVTPL financial investments - Mutual Funds
Asset for which Fair Value are disclosed
Amortised Cost financial investments:
- Government Securities
Total
Liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed
Floating rate borrowings at amortised cost
Total

31 March, 2018

1,545.75
-

1,545.75

1,545.75
-

1,545.75

There has been no transfer between level 1 and level 2 during the period
3

Capital Management & Gearing Ratio
The Company manages its capital structure in a manner to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern
while optimising the return to stakeholders through the appropriate debt and equity balance. The Company’s capital
structure is represented by equity (comprising issued capital, retained earnings and other reserves) and debt. The
Company’s management reviews the capital structure of the Company on an annual basis. As part of this review, the
management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Company’s objective
is to ensure that the gearing ratio (debt equity ratio) is around 70 : 30
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Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows :
(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018
1,545.75
0.14
1,545.61
(47.49)
1,498.12
103.17 %

As at
31 March, 2019
9,902.01
374.87
9,527.14
4,044.17
13,571.31
70.20%

Debt
Less : Cash & Bank Balance
Net debt
Total Capital
Capital & net debt
Net debt to Total Capital plus net debt ratio (%)

(i)	Debt is defined as Non-current borrowings (incl. current maturities) and Current borrowings (incl. interest accrued).
(ii) 	Equity is defined as Equity share capital, Perpetual Equity Instrument and other equity including reserves
and surplus.
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital
structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call
loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current year.
4

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations, routine and projects capital expenditure.
The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, advances, trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations.
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks viz foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk etc. The Company’s primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and
seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company’s senior management
oversees the management of these risks. It advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance
framework for the Company.
The Company has not entered into any derivative transactions.

a.

Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risks arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to the US$.Foreign currency risks arise from future commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities, when they are denominated in a currency other than Indian Rupee. The Company’s exposure
with regards to foreign currency risk which are not hedged are given below.

The following table analyses foreign currency assets and liabilities on balance sheet dates:
As at 31 March, 2019
Foreign
` crore
Currency
(In Millions)
In US$
(i) Interest accrued but not due
(ii) Buyers Credit
(iii) Import Creditors

0.04
8.23
11.86

0.30
56.88
82.00

(` in Crores)
As at 31 March, 2018
Foreign
` crore
Currency
(In Millions)
-

-
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(i)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in US$ exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax and pre-tax equity is
due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including non-designated foreign currency
forward and option contracts given as under:

As of 31 March, 2019
As of 31 March, 2018

b.

Rupee depreciate by ` 1 against US$
Rupee appreciate by ` 1 against US$
Rupee depreciate by ` 1 against US$
Rupee appreciate by ` 1 against US$

(` in Crores)
Effect on profit before tax and
consequential impact on Equity
(-) ` 2.01
(+) ` 2.01
-

Interest rate risk management
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. At
present the entire borrowings of the Company comprise floating rate borrowings.
The Company proposes to use a mix of interest rate sensitive financial instruments to manage the liquidity
and fund requirements for its day to day operations like non-convertible debentures and short term credit
lines besides internal accruals.

(i) 	 Interest rate sensitivity:						
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on exposure to interest rates for term loans at
the end of the reporting period and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year
and held constant throughout the reporting period in case of term loans that have floating rates.
If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all the other variables were held constant,
the effect on Interest expense for the respective financial years and consequent effect on Company’s profit
in that financial year would have been as below:

Interest expense on loan
Effect on profit / (loss) before tax

c.

(` in Crores)
As at 31 March, 2019
As at 31 March, 2018
50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease
35.02
(35.02)
2.63
(2.63)
(35.02)
35.02
(2.63)
2.63

Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables) and from its financing activities including loans and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables
Loans
Other financial assets
Total

As at
31 March, 2019
425.70
49.69
1,154.12
1,629.51

(` in Crores)
As at
31 March, 2018
-

Refer Note 12 for credit risk and other information in respect of trade receivables. Other receivables as stated
above are due from the parties under normal course of the business and as such the Company believes
exposure to credit risk to be minimal.
The Company has not acquired any credit impaired asset.						
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d.

Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are required to be settled by delivering the cash or another financial asset. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and unused borrowing
facilities, by continuously monitoring projected / actual cash flows.

Contractual Maturities of Financial
liabilities
As at 31 March, 2019
Borrowings**
Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total
Contractual Maturities of Financial
liabilities
As at 31 March, 2018
Borrowings**
Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total

Less than 1
year

1 to 5 years

More than 5
years

2,004.90
1,171.27
589.60
3,765.77

2,189.61
2,189.61

5,864.70
21.80
5,886.50

Less than 1
year

1 to 5 years

More than 5
years

222.05
222.05

1323.70
1323.70

-

(` in Crores)
Total

10,059.21
1,193.07
589.60
11,841.88
(` in Crores)
Total

1.545.75
1.545.75

** The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial liabilities
including interest that will be paid on those liabilities upto the maturity of the instruments, ignoring the call
and refinancing options available with the Company. The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
41

The chief operating decision maker ("Board of Directors") evaluates the Company's performance and applies
the resources to whole of the Company business viz. "Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Power" as
an integrated utility. Hence the Company does not have any reportable segment as per lnd AS- 108 "Operating
Segments"

42

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period other than the
events disclosed in the relevant notes.

As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ADANI ELECTRICITY MUMBAI LIMITED
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DIN: 00006867
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Abhijit Banerjee
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